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TAS OFFSHORE BERHAD (Company No. 810179-T)

CORPORATE MISSION
AND PHILOSOPHY

Philosophy

For our customers
•	 We value our customers’ feedbacks and improve the quality of our vessels and services to cater 

for their present and future needs.

For our shareholders
•	 	We aim to grow our share of the market and to maximise the returns on investment for our 

shareholders.

For the society
•	 We assume our role as a responsible corporate citizen by sharing and growing with the community 

in a tangible way through corporate social responsibility.

For our employees
•	 	We care for the well-being of our employees through attractive remuneration and fringe benefits, 

providing relevant trainings to enhance their knowledge and career advancement, and a safe and 
conducive working environment.

To build Quality Price 
Competitive Vessels in 
an Environmental Friendly 
Work Place so as to 
deliver Exceptional Value 
to our Customers and 
Stakeholders. 
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Well back in 1977, an enterprising young businessman Datuk Lau Nai Hoh formed a small trading company dealing 
in marine paint and shipping services. The company grew and diversified into ship repairing and eventually into ship 
building in 1991. As the ship building activities grew, Datuk Lau Nai Hoh set up another company, Tuong Aik Shipyard 
Sdn. Bhd., in 2002 to take care of the shipbuilding and ship repairing activities and has never looked back since.

On 18 March 2008, TAS Offshore Berhad (‘TAS’ or ‘the Company’) was incorporated as an investment holding company 
and listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 28 August 2009. It commenced operations as 
an investment holding company through the acquisition of Tuong Aik Shipyard Sdn. Bhd. on 3 April 2009. Through its 
wholly-owned subsidiaries, Tuong Aik Shipyard Sdn. Bhd. and TA Ventures (L) Ltd, TAS is involved in shipbuilding and 
ship repairing.

The principal business activity of TAS is shipbuilding and its secondary business is in the provision of ship repair services. 
TAS has in place all the resources and facilities including engineers and skilled workers, and machineries and equipment 
for the construction of vessels in compliance with the standards of International Classification Societies at its shipyard 
located along the river bank of Igan River at Sungai Bidut, Sibu. Through its subsidiary, TAS has also engaged shipyards 
in China for the construction of offshore support vessels.

TAS has in its records, constructed tugboats, harbour tugs, anchor handling tugs (AHT), anchor handling tug supply 
vessels (AHTS), landing craft, utility/support vessels, barges, ferries and workboats. 

CORPORATE
PROFILE

TAS Offshore At A Glance
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Year 2013
(RM’000)

2014
(RM’000)

2015
(RM’000)

2016
(RM’000)

2017
(RM’000)

Group Revenue & Profit

Revenue 137,996 254,271 275,873 115,789 20,705

Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation 16,707 34,304 12,932 (21,221) (13,955)

Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year 13,456 28,785 12,543 (21,861) (14,035)

Equity Attributable to 
Owners

Share Capital 90,001 90,001 90,001 90,001 117,640

Treasury Shares (1,613) (1,645) (1,661) (1,777) (1,777)

Shares Premium 27,639 27,639 27,639 27,639 -

Other Reserves 36,226 58,692 75,261 57,310 44,852

Financial Statistics

Basic Earnings/(Loss) 
per Share (Sen)

7.65 16.37 7.13 (12.45) (7.99)

Net Assets per Share (RM) 0.87 0.99 1.09 0.99 0.92

Gearing Ratio 0.12 0.20 0.22 0.19 0.33

FIVE-YEAR
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS as at 31 May
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TAS OFFSHORE BERHAD
(810179-T)

CORPORATE
STRUCTURE

100%
TUONG AIK 

SHIPYARD SDN. BHD.
(575152-H)

100%
WESTERN REALTY 

SDN. BHD.
(887507-X)

100%TA VENTURES (L) LTD.
(LL07438)

100%
TAS EPIC

SDN. BHD.
(1185000-P)
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DIRECTORS’
PROFILE

Datu Haji Mohammed Sepuan Bin Anu, a Malaysian aged 71, 
was appointed as our Independent Non-Executive Chairman 
on 17 July 2014. He was reappointed during the 2016 Annual 
General Meeting. He graduated from Cranfield University of the 
United Kingdom in 1977 with a Bachelor of Science (Hons) in 
Agricultural Engineering. He started his career as an Assistant 
Agriculture Officer in the Department of Agriculture Sarawak in 
1968. He was appointed as Director of the Integrated Agriculture 
Development Project Samarahan in 1994 and later served as 
Director of Agriculture from 2001 until March 2006. He later served 
as the Agriculture Advisor in the Ministry of Modernisation of 
Agriculture Sarawak till April 2007. He was appointed as a member 
of the Public Services Commission Malaysia from 2011 to 2014. 

He has no family relationship with any Director or major 
shareholder of TAS Offshore Berhad and has no conflict of interest 
with the Group.

Datuk Lau Nai Hoh, a Malaysian aged 66, is the founder of 
TAS Group and was appointed as the Non-Independent Group 
Managing Director on 18 March 2008. He has been instrumental in 
the growth and development of the Group. He has approximately 
27 years of experience in the marine industry. He first established 
Tuong Aik (Sarawak) Sdn. Bhd. in late 1977 dealing initially with 
marine paint and hardware. In the early 1990s he ventured into 
ship repairing and shipbuilding activities and in early 2002, Tuong 
Aik Shipyard Sdn. Bhd. was established to specialise in building 
various types of Tugboats to cater for the needs of the mining, 
timber and oil and gas industries. As the founder, he brings 
with him not only the technical and management expertise from 
his extensive experience in Shipbuilding Industry but also the 
valuable network of business contacts that he established over 
the years. He is primarily responsible for planning and developing 
our strategic business direction. 

He is the major shareholder of TAS Offshore Berhad and the 
father of Lau Choo Chin, the Deputy Managing Director of TAS 
Offshore Berhad.

He is deemed interested in the transactions entered into with 
the related parties, which are carried out in the ordinary course 
of business, as detailed in the notes to the financial statements.  
Except as disclosed therein, he has no personal interest in any 
other business arrangement with the Company.

Datu Haji Mohammed Sepuan Bin Anu 
Independent Non-Executive Chairman (Male) 
Member: Audit Committee

Datuk Lau Nai Hoh 
Non-Independent Managing Director (Male) 
Member: Remuneration Committee
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Lau Choo Chin, a Malaysian aged 42, was appointed as our 
Non-Independent Deputy Managing Director on 18 March 
2008. He graduated with a Diploma in Marketing Management 
from the Institute of Marketing Malaysia in 2001. Before joining 
Tuong Aik Shipyard Sdn. Bhd. in 2005, he was with Tuong Aik 
(Sarawak) Sdn. Bhd. for 8 years involving with the coordination of 
shipbuilding activities. He has more than 19 years of experience 
in shipbuilding and project management related especially to the 
Oil and Gas Industry. He has been instrumental in developing 
the Middle-East market and in spearheading the development of 
engineering design for vessels used by the oil and gas industry. 
His in-depth knowledge in vessel manufacturing and established 
business network will continue to benefit us.

He is the son of Datuk Lau Nai Hoh, the Non-Independent 
Managing Director and major shareholder of TAS Offshore Berhad.  
As such, he is deemed interested in the transactions entered into 
with the related parties, which are carried out in the ordinary course 
of business, as detailed in the notes to the financial statements. 
Except as disclosed therein, he has no personal interest in any 
other business arrangement with the Company.

Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Mohd Jamil Bin Johari, a Malaysian aged 
70, was appointed as our Independent Non-Executive Director 
effective from 1 June 2009. He is a graduate from the University 
of Malaya with a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) degree and a Diploma 
in Education. He also obtained a Master of Arts in Political 
Science from the University of Washington, Seattle, Washington, 
US. He joined the Royal Malaysian Police in January 1971 as 
Chief Inspector and retired with the rank of Deputy Inspector 
General of Police in May 2002. Thereafter, he was appointed as 
High Commissioner of Malaysia to Brunei until July 2004. He is 
a member of the Board of Trustees of Yayasan Pengamanan, 
an NGO dedicated to matters concerning law and order issues. 

He has no family relationship with any Director or major 
shareholder of TAS Offshore Berhad and has no conflict of interest 
with the Group.

He is the Independent Non-Executive Chairman as well as a 
member of the Audit Committee of Dolomite Corporation Berhad 
and also holds directorship in private limited companies. 

Lau Choo Chin 
Non-Independent 
Deputy Managing Director (Male)

Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Mohd Jamil Bin Johari 
Independent Non-Executive Director (Male) 
Chairman: Nomination Committee  
Member: Audit Committee

DIRECTORS’
PROFILE (cont’d)



annual report 2017
9

DIRECTORS’
PROFILE (cont’d)

Notes :

•	 None of our Directors has been convicted of any offences within the past 5 years and no public sanction or penalty was imposed 
by the relevant regulatory bodies on our Directors during the financial year.

•	 Directors’ attendance at Board meetings is listed on page 18 of this Annual Report.

Lau Kiing Yiing, a Malaysian aged 62, was appointed as our 
Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 June 2009. He 
graduated from the University of Canterbury, New Zealand, 
with a Bachelor of Commerce degree. He holds professional 
memberships in the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and the 
Malaysian Institute of Taxation. He is also a Fellow member of CPA 
Australia, a Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants, 
Australia and a Member of the New Zealand Institute of Chartered 
Accountants. His working experience commenced with auditing 
various business while with Ernst and Whinney (now known as 
Ernst and Young). With over 37 years of experience, he is well 
versed in corporate reporting, corporate finance, restructuring 
work, auditing and taxation matters. He was a partner of the 
accounting firm, Crowe Horwath.

He has no family relationship with any Director or major 
shareholder of TAS Offshore Berhad and has no conflict of interest 
with the Group.

He is a Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit 
Committee and Nomination Committee of Hock Seng Lee Berhad. 

Ling Ka Chuan, a Malaysian aged 59, was appointed as our 
Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 June 2009. He 
graduated with a Bachelor of Engineering (Mechanical) from the 
University of Auckland, New Zealand in 1983. He started his 
career with Jabatan Kerja Raya in Kuching in 1983 and was the 
Senior Executive Engineer when he left in 1998 to venture into 
the private sector. 

He has no family relationship with any Director or major 
shareholder of TAS Offshore Berhad and has no conflict of interest 
with the Group.

Lau Kiing Yiing
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director (Male) 
Chairman: Audit Committee 
Member: Remuneration and Nomination Committees

Ling Ka Chuan 
Independent Non-Executive Director (Male) 
Chairman: Remuneration Committee  
Member: Audit and Nomination Committees
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The business environment for the FYE2017 was extremely challenging and it was a test of our resilience. The prolonged 
slump in prices of and demand for oil and mineral ores, has greatly affected the operators of both these industries and 
industries related to them. The oil majors have reduced both their capital and operation expenditures which resulted 
in a glut in the availability of the offshore support vessels and the falls in the charter rates. The downward pressure on 
demand for mineral ores and export control imposed by the Indonesian government on unprocessed mineral ores had 
also affected the tugboats market.  

The slump in oil prices had caused the Group to record a much lower revenue of RM20.7 million for FYE2017. The drop 
in revenue was mainly caused by the drop in the sales of the offshore support vessels due to the low demand of such 
vessels because of the low oil price and also the drop in selling price of the vessels due to keen market competition. 
The Board is however, pleased that the Group had reduced the loss figures for this financial year to RM14.0 million from 
RM21.8 million recorded for the previous financial year. The loss was mainly caused by a RM7.4 million write down in 
value of the Group’s inventories of unsold vessels. 

The oil price has remained in the range of US$45 to US$50 per barrel as a result of the production reduction by the 
OPEC and non-OPEC countries. The decision by these countries to extend the production reduction to March 2018 
to rebalance the oil price will further improve the outlook of the oil price. However, increase in production by Libya 
and Nigeria, the increase in the number of rig deployments and the increase in shale oil production in the USA may 
affect the outcome of the effort taken by the OPEC and non-OPEC countries to balance the oil price. With Indonesian 

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is my pleasure to 
present to you the Annual Report of TAS Offshore Berhad 
and its Group of Companies (‘the Group’) for the financial 
year ended 31 May 2017 (‘FYE2017’).

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS
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Government easing the ban on export of unprocessed mineral ores since January 2017 and the improvement of coal 
price, the prospects for sale of tugboats are expected to improve. Our Group’s position is expected to benefit from both 
the upward movement of coal and oil prices and the ease on export control of unprocessed mineral ores. 

It is indeed very encouraging to note that for FYE2017, the Group has secured contracts totalling about RM51.5 million 
(for 1 tugboat, 2 harbour tugs, 1 landing craft) as compared to the RM6.5 million secured for FYE2016.

The Group will continue to seek ways to improve the operation efficiency, cut costs and conserve cash. The Management 
is actively sourcing for buyers for vessels on hands. The Group is being managed prudently to ride out the current 
economic turbulence and we are cautiously optimistic of our prospect. 

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank you for your patience and support of the Group and wish to record my 
appreciation for the Management and staff for their hard work and dedication.

Datu Haji Mohammed Sepuan Bin Anu
Chairman

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS (cont’d)
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Overview of Group’s Business and Operation

Our Group is involved principally in the shipbuilding operations and secondary in the ship repairing activities. 
Shipbuilding generates about 87.5% of the revenue while ship repairing activities account for about 7.8% of the 
revenue. Though a small player in the global shipbuilding arena, the Group has established itself in the shipbuilding 
industry and has a well equipped shipyard located at the bank of Igan River at Sibu, Sarawak with engineers and 
skilled workers for construction of vessels in compliance with the standards of international classification societies. 

In the Group’s operation records, it has constructed vessels used by the transportation, timber, mining, and oil and 
gas industries, and harbour operation. These vessels include ferries, tugboats, harbour tugs, barges, landing craft, 
anchor handling tugs (AHT), anchor handling tug and supply vessels (AHTS), utility/support vessels and workboats. 
The Group has also engaged shipyards in China for the construction of offshore support vessels used by the oil 
and gas industry besides building them at its own yard.

Previously the middle-eastern countries, Singapore and Indonesia were the main markets when the oil and commodity 
prices were good. However, when oil and commodity prices took a tumble in recent years, the Group shifted its 
market focus to other regions. During FYE2017 the main markets for the Group are Switzerland (66.9%), Malaysia 
(20.0%) and Singapore (13.6%).

Our Group adds values to its vessels by being innovative in the designs of vessel, promoting green technology and 
savings on fuel consumption. 

Review of Financial Results and Financial Condition

The Group recorded a revenue of RM20.7 million for FYE2017, a drop of RM95.1 million or 82.1% as compared to 
RM115.8 million recorded for financial year ended 31 May 2016 (‘FYE2016’). The drop in revenue was mainly caused 
by the drop in sale of the offshore support vessel due to the low demand of offshore support vessel because of the 
low oil price and also the drop in selling price of the vessels due to keen market competition.

Loss before tax for FYE2017 stood at RM13.9 million, an improvement of 34.2%, as compared to a loss before 
tax of RM21.2 million for FYE2016. The improvement in performance was mainly due to the reduced impairment 
loss on trade and other receivables. For FYE2017, the loss after tax was RM14.0 million as compared to a loss 
of RM21.8 million recorded for FYE2016. The loss was mainly caused by the write down in value of inventories of 
unsold vessels amounted to RM7.4 million.

The increase in inventories by 16.2% to RM474.1 million during FYE2017 was mainly caused by an increase of 
vessels under construction amounted to RM65.6 million. Trade and other receivables for FYE2017 increased by 
19.8% to RM36.2 million from RM30.2 million for FYE2016 due mainly to the increase in deposits paid to shipbuilding 
contractors. 

Trade and other payables increased by RM10.9 million or 3.0% to RM375.3 million. The increase was mainly caused 
by accruals for work performed by shipbuilding contractors.

Capital Expenditure Requirements, Capital Structure and Resources

In view of the current depressing global economic condition, there is no plan to incur new capital expenditure as the 
Group maintains its current operation capacity. As for working capital requirement, currently the Group relies on funds 
generated internally and short term bank borrowing to finance the needs. In the long term, where implementation of 
business plan calls for substantial capital sum injection, the Group will contemplate sourcing the fund from equity 
market and may also seek synergic and reliable joint-venture partner.

Known Trend and Events

The Group is facing with a drop in sales, particularly the offshore support vessels, due mainly to the fall in oil price, 
reduction in capital expenditures by the oil majors and a glut of offshore support vessels in the market. Low mineral 
ores prices have also affected the sales of the tugboats. All the above factors resulted in keen competition among 
the ship builders which has suppressed the selling prices of the vessels and unfavourably affected the revenue 
and gross profit margin.  

Management 
Discussion and Analysis
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Review of Operation Activities

Our Group is actively involved with the principal business activity of shipbuilding which involves construction of 
offshore support vessels for the oil and gas industry, tugboats for the mineral ores industries, harbour tugs for the 
port operations and landing crafts which can be used by various industries for transportation purposes.

The low oil price has resulted in a decrease in demand of the offshore support vessels and adversely affected the 
sales of this type of vessel. The Group has since slow down or suspended the construction progress in this section. 
Upward movement in oil price will augur well for the Group’s current position. The Group is actively scouting for 
new sale prospects and markets to improve the sales of offshore support vessels.

The sales of tugboats have slowed down in previous financial year since the fall in mineral ores prices and since the 
Indonesian Government put a control on export of unprocessed ores. However, the construction of such vessels is 
ongoing at our shipyard though at a slower pace. The sale is expected to improve as the Indonesian Government 
had relaxed the export control of unprocessed ores in January 2017. The construction of these tugboats is financed 
with fund internally generated. The Management is currently working through the network to market the tugboats 
on hand to parties involved with mining of mineral ores. 

The construction of harbour tugs under contracts is underway at the yard under close supervision. These vessels 
are expected to be delivered in the fourth quarter of 2017. 

The unit of landing craft built under contract secured in FYE2017, will be delivered by third quarter of 2017. We have 
built a reputation for construction of quality landing crafts and are currently talking to prospective buyer. 

The contracts on hand for the construction of the harbour tugs and landing craft will contribute positively to financial 
year 2018.

Anticipated or Known Risks

The fall in the sales of offshore support vessels due to low oil price has created the risk of loss of the value of the 
inventories of unsold vessels, thus leading to the write down in value of those vessels during the FYE2017. This has 
affected the financial performance of the Group unfavourably. The Group’s cash position will also be affected by 
both the fall in vessel sales and low selling price. To mitigate these risks, the Management is actively prospecting 
for new market for the vessels on hand to minimize the exposure to further impairment in value of those vessels and 
the Management has also taken steps to conserve the cash position by slowing down the construction progress of 
vessels built for sale, concentrating effort on those built under contracts, and implementing cost cutting measures 
such as reduction in contractors engaged and administration expenses. 

Forward-looking Statement

The oil price has remained in the range of US$45 to US$50 per barrel as a result of the production reduction by 
the OPEC and non-OPEC countries. The decision by these countries to extend the production reduction, which 
brought about the current oil price and curtailed the increase in crude flow, to March 2018 to rebalance the oil 
price will further improved the outlook of the oil price. However, the increase in production by Libya and Nigeria, 
the increase in the number of rig deployments and the increase in shale oil production in the USA may affect the 
outcome of the effort taken by the OPEC and non-OPEC countries to balance the oil price. 

Thus, the Group remains cautious about the oil price movements in the short term and will be prudent in its operation. 
However, in the long run, the global demand for oil is expected to exceed the production due to the growth in 
population, and industrial and development activities. Hence, the oil price is expected to recover and demand of 
offshore support vessels to return in the long run. The Group is well positioned to benefit from the oil price recovery. 
The outlook of the tugboat market has improved as the Indonesian Government had eased the export control 
on unprocessed mineral ores and the upward movement of coal price may drive the demand of tugboats. These 
developments augur well for the Group. 
 
Overall, the Group is cautiously optimistic about its prospects and is prudently managed to weather the current 
economic turbulence. 

MANAGEMENT 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont’d)
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TAS practises good Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’) and  these practices 
are imbedded as an integral part of its operations.  We strive to be a socially 
responsible citizen, meeting globally recognised corporate responsibility 
standard by incorporating CSR as part of our Corporate Culture.

We are committed to treat CSR as a sustainable approach to business that 
would benefit all stakeholders.

REPORT ON 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The key initiatives and activities carried out during the year 
include:

Community Care

Sharing with society

We practice the policy of ‘sharing with society’ and promote 
our care for community by engaging in activities involving 
with the needy groups and the well-being of the community. 

During FY2017 we took part in two job fairs organised by the 
Ministry of Human Resource Malaysia to provide information 
and job opportunities under Azam Kerja programme and to 
those residents of rural areas.

On the education front, an education fund had been set up. 
The fund is available to the children of TAS’ employees and 
also other needy and deserving students to assist them in 
pursuing their education. 

Human Resource

At TAS we perceive human resource as an important factor 
in ensuring the success of the TAS Group. We highly value 
our employees’ contribution and believe that by developing 
the right employees and retaining their services will facilitate 
the future growth of the Group. 

We provide not only fair and handsome monetary rewards in 
basic pay, allowance and bonuses but also medical benefits 
and insurance coverage. Workers’ quarters and amenities 
are continually maintained to ensure that the living conditions 
of the yard workers are well taken care of.

In addition, TAS also values highly the development of 
sustainable human resources by placing high emphasis on 
executive succession planning and development. In-house 
trainings and external courses pertaining to enhancement 
of both technical and management skills and knowledge 
are provided for selected staff to improve their practical 
knowledge and field exposure.

We believe caring for the employees in their career 
developments and general welfare is a positive affirmation 
of showing our appreciation of their efforts. 
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Health and Safety

TAS Group is aware of the importance of health and safety at work place. In our quest to provide a conducive working 
environment where workers’ health and safety are treated with utmost priority, various health and safety policies and 
procedures are adopted and implemented. These health and safety policies, guidelines and procedures generally cover:

•	 Safety procedures to be followed at the yard including wearing of protective and safety gears by the workers.
•	 Undertaking by Contractors working at the yard to abide to the health and safety policies and procedures 

implemented.
•	 Occupational Health and Safety Awareness.
•	 Cleanliness and tidiness of workers’ quarters and compound. 

Internal courses on Health and Safety Awareness are conducted for office staff, yard workers and contractors. 

We also conduct health and safety checks to ensure that the yard, quarters and their surrounding are well maintained 
and tidy at all times and that all safety equipment is operational and placed at strategic places.

REPORT ON
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (cont’d)
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Statement on 
Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors is committed to ensure that the core values such as accountability, transparency and 
integrity are incorporated into the corporate governance and practised throughout the Group as a fundamental 
part of discharging its responsibilities to protect and enhance shareholders’ value and the financial performance 
of TAS Group.

The Board subscribes to the principles and recommendations prescribed by the Malaysian Code of Corporate 
Governance 2012 (‘the Code’.) 

The Board is pleased to provide the statement below setting out the manner in which the Group has applied the 
principles of the Code and the extent of compliance with recommendations advocated therein.

Board of Directors

TAS Group is led and controlled by an effective and well balanced Board, whose members are of diverse background 
and have vast experience, the structure of composition of which is consistent with the Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad Listing Requirements (‘the Listing Requirements’) and the Code.

The Board plays an active role in directing management in an effective and responsible manner.  The Directors, 
collectively and individually, has a legal and fiduciary duty to act in the best interest of the  Group and to effectively 
represent and promote the interests of the shareholders and stakeholders with a view to achieve its vision towards 
corporate sustainability.

The Board has the following major responsibilities:

a)	 Strategic Direction 

	 The Board establishes the vision for the Group and sets overall objectives. The Board reviews the operation 
performances on quarterly basis to ensure that the performances are aligned to the Group’s overall strategic 
direction and objectives.

b)	 Overall Management 

	 The Board oversees the conduct of the Group’s business to ensure that it has been properly managed and is 
sustainable. The Executive Directors are delegated with relevant approving authorities for the management 
of the business operations. 

c)	 Risk Management and Internal Control

	 The Board through its Risk Management Committee oversees the efficiency and adequacy of the Group’s risk 
management and internal control system by establishing risk management framework with ongoing process 
for identifying, evaluating and managing significant financial risks faced by the Group. 

d)	 Succession Planning

	 The Board ensures high standard prevails in the processes of appointing, training, assessing of the right 
candidates in succession planning. The Nomination Committee monitors and evaluates the performances of 
the senior management and members of the Board with a view for continuous improvement and to plan for 
successors.  

e)	 Good Corporate Governance

	 The Board ensures that corporate governance adopted and practised are in line with the principles of 
transparency, accountability and integrity so as to protect and enhance shareholders’ interest and financial 
performance of the Group. 



annual report 2017
17

In the course of carrying out their responsibilities, the Board is guided by the Code of Ethics, an integral part of 
the Company’s Board Charter (‘the Charter’), codifying a standard of conduct expected from the Directors, protect 
the Group’s business, maintain the Group’s integrity and foster compliance with relevant legal and regulatory 
requirements. The Charter which is observed by all the Directors relies on the principles of integrity, accountability, 
and compliance with relevant regulatory requirements. Matters requiring Board’s decision and those under the 
umbrella of the Executive Directors’ delegated authorities are clearly specified therein and brought to the attention 
of the parties concerned.

A copy of the Charter can be found on the Company’s website. 

In addition, various Board Committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the 
Nomination Committee have been established and delegated with specific responsibilities to assist the Board in 
discharging some of its functions. The term of reference for the Audit Committee, and the Nomination Committee 
uploaded on the Company’s website were last reviewed in 2016.

Board Balance and Composition

As at the date of this statement, the Board has six (6) members, comprising two (2) Executive Directors and four 
(4) Independent Non-Executive Directors. The structure of composition is consistent with the Listing Requirements 
and the Code which requires that at least two (2) Directors or one third of the Board, whichever is the higher, are 
Independent Directors.  

The Directors have a wide range of technical, management, accounting and financial experience. The mix of skills 
and exposure is vital for the effective functioning of the Board.  The Nomination Committee, pursuant to its recent 
annual review, is satisfied that the current size and composition of the Board is appropriate and well balanced to 
adequately reflect the interest of minority shareholders in the Company.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors who are individuals of high calibre and standing, contribute significantly 
in enhancing the corporate governance and ensuring the objectivity in Board’s decision making. They provide an 
effective independent and balanced view to the Board. Although all the Directors have an equal responsibility for 
the Group’s operations, the role of the Independent Non-Executive Directors is particularly important in ensuring 
that independence of judgement and objectivity are exercised in board room deliberations, taking into account the 
long term interest, not only of the Group but also of the shareholders and other stakeholders. 

Annual assessments of the Independent Directors’ continuous ability to exercise independent and unbiased 
deliberation are performed by the Board based on a set of criteria. They are also assessed for their ability to continue 
to provide valuable contribution to the Board’s deliberation. 

Based on the evaluation conducted, the Board is satisfied that the Independent Directors have fulfilled the required 
criteria stipulated in the Bursa Securities Listing Requirements.  

The Board has identified Mr Lau Kiing Yiing as the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director. Being the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee, he is the most appropriate spokesperson for all Independent Non-Executive Directors as 
well as channel for other stakeholders to convey their concerns, if any. 

Board Meetings

Board meetings are scheduled for every quarter with additional meetings convened as and when necessary. The 
annual Board meeting calendar is prepared and circulated to Directors at the beginning of each year so that the 
Directors can plan accordingly and fit the year’s meetings into their respective schedules.  The calendar provides 
the scheduled dates for meetings of the Board, Board Committees and Annual General Meeting as well as the 
closed period for dealings in TAS’s shares by Directors and principal officers.

Statement on 
Corporate Governance (cont’d)
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Statement on 
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During the financial year ended 31 May 2017, five (5) Board meetings were held. Details of attendance of Directors 
are set out below. 

Name of Directors Designation
Meeting 

Attendance

Datu Haji Mohammed Sepuan Bin Anu 	Independent Non-Executive Chairman 5/5

Datuk Lau Nai Hoh Managing Director 5/5

Lau Choo Chin Deputy Managing Director 5/5

Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Mohd Jamil Bin Johari Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5

Lau Kiing Yiing
	
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5

Ling Ka Chuan Independent Non-Executive Director	 4/5

At the Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board will ensure that adequate time is given for each agenda item to 
be deliberated. The Chairman of the respective Board Committee will report on the deliberation at the Committee 
meetings held earlier.  The Board ensures that its decisions as well as issues discussed before arriving at those 
decisions are properly documented.

Access to Information

The Board has unrestricted access to the Senior Management and timely, accurate financial, management and 
operation information for the discharge of its duties.

Each Director is provided with an agenda and a set of board papers 2 weeks prior to the Board and Board Committee 
meetings to enable the Directors to obtain further explanations, where necessary, in order to be properly briefed 
before the meetings. 

The Directors are also consulted and briefed on any major announcements to be made to Bursa Malaysia.

Besides direct access to the Management, the Directors have access to the advice and service of the Company 
Secretary, Internal and External Auditors and where necessary, independent professional advice at the Company’s 
expense.

Appointment to the Board

The Company practises non-gender discrimination. Directors are recruited based on merit that will add value to 
and complement the Board in discharging its responsibilities in the best interest of the Group. 

The Nomination Committee is responsible for selecting and recommending to the Board suitable candidate for 
the appointment as new director to the board in accordance with the Directors Selection Policy which takes into 
consideration: ethics and integrity, qualification and experience, elements of conflict of interest and independence 
and, devotion and time commitment. 
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Statement on 
Corporate Governance (cont’d)

The Company Secretary will ensure that all appointments are properly made and all legal and regulatory requirements 
are complied with.

In the process of appointing new directors, the Company provides an orientation and education programme for 
the new appointees to the Board. 

Assessment and Re-Election of Directors

The Nomination Committee evaluates the performance of the Board and each of the Board Committees as a whole 
annually and also the performance of each director. Each member of the Nomination Committee is given a set of the 
questionnaires covering board and committees composition, operations, roles and responsibilities with evaluation 
emphasising on areas such as mix of skills, expertise and knowledge, access to and timeliness of information, roles 
in risk management and internal control, succession planning, and contribution to management decision making. 
The Nomination Committee reports to the Board with the evaluation results and recommendations for further 
deliberation by the Board. This formal and transparent evaluation process provides the basis for recommendation 
of Directors’ training needs and re-election of existing Directors to the Board. 

The re-election of existing directors at the annual general meeting by the shareholders provides shareholders an 
opportunity to reassess the composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee also conducts annual evaluation on the performance of the Audit Committee based on 
the criteria set out in the Performance Evaluation Form covering areas such as experience, characters and initiative, 
analytical skill, and operational and financial knowledge.

Board Commitment

The Board is satisfied with the level of commitment of all the Directors which is reflected through their attendance 
at Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings. In order to assist Directors commit their time for the Company, 
the annual corporate calendar is distributed to each Director at the beginning of each year to facilitate the Directors 
in planning their meeting schedule for the year.

The Directors are aware that they must not hold directorship in more than five (5) public listed companies.  In any 
event, the Directors are reminded that they must inform the Company Secretary immediately of any new appointments 
that they accept. 

Directors’ Training

All Directors have attended the Mandatory Accreditation Programme.  The Directors are encouraged to attend 
training courses and seminars organised by the regulatory authorities and professional bodies as a continuous 
learning programme to keep abreast with new developments in the business and to effectively discharge their duties. 
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For Financial Year 2017, all Directors have attended training courses with details as follows:

Directors Courses	 Date of Attendance

Datu Haji Mohammed Sepuan 
Bin Anu

Recent Amendments to the Listing Requirements by 
Bursa Malaysia & Corporate Sustainability & Issuance 
of Sustainability Statement

15 July 2016

Datuk Lau Nai Hoh Recent Amendments to the Listing Requirements by 
Bursa Malaysia & Corporate Sustainability & Issuance 
of Sustainability Statement

15 July 2016

Lau Choo Chin Recent Amendments to the Listing Requirements by 
Bursa Malaysia & Corporate Sustainability & Issuance 
of Sustainability Statement

15 July 2016

Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Mohd Jamil 
Bin Johari

Recent Amendments to the Listing Requirements by 
Bursa Malaysia & Corporate Sustainability & Issuance 
of Sustainability Statement

15 July 2016

Lau Kiing Yiing   	Recent Amendments to the Listing Requirements by 
Bursa Malaysia & Corporate Sustainability & Issuance 
of Sustainability Statement

15 July 2016

Ling Ka Chuan 	Companies Act 2016 & Interest Scheme Act 2016 4 May 2017

Board Committees

The following Board Committees have been established to assist the Board in discharging its duties. These 
Committees report to the Board on matters deliberated and their recommendations thereon. The ultimate 
responsibility for the final decision, however, lies with the Board.  The functions and terms of reference of the 
Committees as well as authority delegated by the Board to these Committees are clearly defined. 

(i)	 Audit Committee

	 The Audit Committee has four (4) members, comprising entirely of Independent Non-Executive Directors. 
Detailed information on Audit Committee can be found in the Audit Committee Report on page 28 to 29 of 
this Annual Report.

(ii)	 Nomination Committee

	 The Nomination Committee has three (3) members, all of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors. 
The Nomination Committee is currently made up of the following Directors:

Chairman:		  Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Mohd Jamil Bin Johari 
			   Independent Non-Executive Director

Members:		  Lau Kiing Yiing
 			   Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

			   Ling Ka Chuan
			   Independent Non-Executive Director
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(ii)	 Nomination Committee (cont’d)

The key terms of reference approved for the Committee are as follows:

•	 To identify and nominate for the approval of the Board, candidates to fill board vacancies as and when 
the need arises. 

•	 To review the required mix of skills, experience and other qualities, including core competencies, which 
Non-Executive Directors should bring to the Board.

•	 To assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the contribution of each Director and the Board 
Committees.

•	 To recommend to the Board for continuation the service of Executive Director(s) and Non-Executive 
Director(s) who are due for retirement by rotation.

•	 To review the terms of office of Audit Committee and the performance of Audit Committee and each 
of its members to determine whether the Audit Committee have carried out their duties in accordance 
with their terms of reference.

•	 To facilitate training programmes for Directors.
	
The key activities of the Nomination Committee undertaken during the financial year were as follows:

•	 Reviewed and assessed the required size, composition, mix of skill, experience and other qualities of 
the Board.

•	 Assessed the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the contribution of each Director and the Board 
Committees.

•	 Recommended to the Board for continuation the services of the Directors who were due for retirement 
by rotation.

•	 Reviewed the terms of office of Audit Committee and the performance of Audit Committee and each 
of its members to determine whether the Audit Committee have carried out their duties in accordance 
with their terms of reference.

•	 Facilitated training programmes for the Directors.

	 One (1) Nomination Committee meeting was held during the financial year ended 31 May 2017 and was 
attended by all the members. 

(iii)	 Remuneration Committee

	 The Remuneration Committee has three (3) members, comprising two Independent Non-Executive Directors 
and one Executive Director. The Remuneration Committee is currently made up of the following Directors:

Chairman:	 Ling Ka Chuan
		  Independent Non-Executive Director

Members:	 Lau Kiing Yiing
		  Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
			 
		  Datuk Lau Nai Hoh
		  Non-Independent Managing Director

The key terms of reference approved for the Committee are as follows:

•	 To set the policy framework and to make recommendations for approval by the Board with respect to 
matters relating to the remuneration of Directors and senior executives.

•	 To oversee the integrity of the incentive based assessment process.

	 One (1) Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the financial year ended 31 May 2017 and was 
attended by all members.

Statement on 
Corporate Governance (cont’d)
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Directors’ Remuneration

The Group’s policy on Directors’ remuneration is structured with the objective to attract and retain Directors needed 
to run the Group successfully.

The Remuneration Committee recommends to the Board the framework of the Executive Directors’ remuneration 
and their remuneration package. The remuneration of these Directors however, is determined by the Board as a 
whole with the Director concerned abstained from deliberation in respect of his individual remuneration.

In formulating the remuneration policy and package, the Remuneration Committee takes into consideration the 
responsibility and job function, individual and corporate performance, and remuneration packages of comparable 
companies in the same industry.

The remuneration package for the Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors consists of the 
following:

•	 Salaries

	 Executive Directors’ salaries are formulated taking into account their responsibilities, functions and 
performance, competitive to a comparable role in a similar organisation.

	 An annual review is conducted on these remuneration packages and salaries are adjusted to reflect 
performances, responsibilities, job function and market trends.

•	 Fees

	 Fees for Independent Non-Executive Directors are determined by the Board as a whole and subject to the 
shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting.

•	 Allowances for Independent Non-Executive Directors

	 Allowances are paid to Independent Non-Executive Directors in accordance with their responsibilities and 
involvement in the Board and Board Committees. 

•	 Bonus and Other Benefits

	 Bonus and incentives are paid to the Executive Directors, in line with the Group’s remuneration policy, 
depending on individual and corporate performance. 

Other benefits include allowances, vehicles, telecommunication facilities, medical and insurance coverage.

A summary of the remuneration of the Directors received from both the Company and Subsidiary for the financial year 
ended 31 May 2017 distinguishing between Executive and Non-Executive Directors in aggregate, with categorisation 
into appropriate components and the number of Directors whose remuneration falls into each successive band of 
RM50,000 are set out below:

Fees (RM) Salary (RM) Bonus (RM)
Allowance 

(RM)

Other 
Benefits 

(RM) Total (RM)

Executive 
Directors
- Company
- Subsidiary

–
–

132,804 
1,195,236

–
–

–
–

53,250 
309,410

186,054
1,504,646

Non-
Executive
Directors 147,000 – – 27,400 – 174,400

Total 147,000 1,328,040 – 27,400 362,660 1,865,100

Note: Remuneration received was from Company, unless otherwise stated.
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Range of Remuneration 
(RM)

Executive 
Director

Non-Executive 
Director Total

1 – 50,000 – 4 4

450,000 – 500,000 1 – 1

1,350,000 – 1,400,000 1 – 1

Total 2 4 6

Dialogue with Investors

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining good relationship and communication flow with the 
investors. As such, the Board is committed to disseminate all important issues and developments in the Group 
timely, adequately and properly through announcements made to the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, annual 
reports, circulars issued to shareholders and press releases.

In this regard, the Company strictly adheres to disclosure requirements in the Listing Requirements and its internal 
corporate disclosure policies and procedures to ensure that material and market sensitive information are not 
unduly disclosed before an official announcement is made to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad for public release. 

The Company maintains a website at www.tasoffshore.com that allows all shareholders and investors to gain 
access to information about the Group to encourage strengthening of effective communication and engagement 
with the shareholders.

Annual General Meeting

The Company uses the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) as the main avenue to communicate and interact with the 
shareholders of the Company. The shareholders are encouraged to participate actively during the question and 
answer sessions with the Directors to better inform themselves with the financial performance and operations of 
the Group. 

Notices of each general meeting are issued on a timely manner to all, giving the shareholders sufficient time to 
prepare for attendance at the meeting. In the case of special businesses, a statement explaining the effect of the 
proposed resolution is provided accordingly. 

Poll voting will be conducted for all resolutions set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting. 

Financial Reporting

In presenting the financial results, the Directors are mindful of the needs to present a balanced assessment of the 
Group’s financial position to the shareholders, investors and regulatory authorities. The quarterly results and annual 
financial statements are reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board before release to the public. 
A Statement of Directors’ Responsibility in preparing the financial statements is set out below. 

Internal Control and Risk Management 

The Board affirms the importance of maintaining a sound system of internal control and risk management practices. 
It acknowledges its overall responsibility over these areas and in reviewing the effectiveness and adequacy of the 
internal control system. 
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The Audit Committee is entrusted with the responsibility to oversee the internal control and risk management of 
the Company. The Company’s risk management policy defines its approach to risk management, linkage to the 
corporate objective and integration into the business processes, while under the risk management framework, 
structures and procedures are set up to monitor and manage the risks faced by the Group. The Audit Committee 
is aided by both the internal auditor and the Risk Management Working Committee whose members are made up 
of all the departmental heads. The Risk Management Working Committee meets quarterly to review the identified 
inherent risks of respective departments. The review is done by rating or scoring the risks identified according to the 
matrix table. Rectifying actions are then determined and implemented to bring the risks to an acceptable level. A 
report is submitted to the Audit Committee quarterly for review and deliberation during the quarterly Audit Committee 
meeting. The Audit Committee will then report to the Board on key risk management issues and recommend where 
necessary, any further actions to be taken to mitigate the risks identified.  

Detailed information on risk management and internal control is set out in the Statement on Risk Management and 
Internal Control on page 26.
 

Relationship with External Auditors

The Board has established a transparent, objective and professional relationship with the external auditors through 
the Audit Committee in discussing with them their audit plans, audit findings and financial statements. The Audit 
Committee invites the external auditors to attend its scheduled meetings to present their audit plan, audit findings, 
highlight and discuss the internal controls and problems that may require the attention of the Board.

Policies and procedures are established by the Board to guide the Audit Committee in their annual assessment of 
the external auditors’ independence and objectivity including monitoring the provision of non-audit related services 
to ensure that the external auditors’ independence and objectivity are not, and are not perceived to be in conflict 
with their roles.

Written assurance is obtained from the external auditors confirming that the provision of their services to the Group 
do not impair their independence. 

Details of the audit and non-audit fees paid or payable to the Company’s external auditors, Messrs. Folks DFK & 
Co. for the FYE2017 are as follows: 

Company Group

Statutory audit fees (RM) 30,000 63,588

Non-audit fees (RM)   4,500   4,500

34,500 68,088

The Audit Committee, having appraised the performance and assessed the independence and objectivity of the 
external auditors, was satisfied with their competency and independence and had recommended to the Board for 
their reappointment for the ensuing year.

Details on the roles of Audit Committee in relation to both the external and internal auditors can be found in the 
Audit Committee Report laid out on page 28 of this Annual Report.

Statement on Directors’ Responsibility 

The Directors are required by the Companies Act 2016, to prepare financial statements for each financial year which 
have been made out in accordance with the applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia so as to give 
a true and fair view of the financial state of affairs of the Company and the Group at the end of the financial year.
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In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have:

(i) 	 adopted appropriate accounting policies, which are applied consistently;

(ii) 	 ensured that all applicable accounting standards have been complied with; 

(iii) 	 made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

(iv) 	 prepared financial statements on a going concern basis. 
	
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company and the Group keep accounting records which disclose 
with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Company and the Group and which enable them to ensure 
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2016 and applicable approved accounting standards. 

The Directors are also responsible for taking reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities 
so as to safeguard the assets of the Group.

Status of Utilisation of Proceeds

The gross proceeds derived from the Public Issue in conjunction with the listing of the Company on the Main Market 
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 28 August 2009 had been fully utilised. 

Material Contracts

There was no material contract entered into by the Company or its subsidiaries involving the interest of the Directors, 
or major shareholders either still subsisting at the end of the financial year ended 31 May 2017 or entered into since 
the end of the previous financial year.

Recurrent Related Party Transactions

The related party transactions are disclosed on page 93 and 94 of this Annual Report. 
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Statement on 
Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is committed to maintain a sound system of risk management and internal control in the Group to 
safeguard shareholders’ interest and the Group’s assets. The following statement outlines the nature and scope of 
the risk management and internal control of the Group. 

Board’s Responsibility
 
The Board of Directors is responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal control system including the 
establishment of a control environment and framework, and reviewing the adequacy, effectiveness and integrity 
of the system. The system of risk management and internal control covers, inter alia, financial and operational 
activities, compliance controls and various risk areas identified. Because of the limitations that are inherent in any 
system of risk management and internal control, this system is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk 
of failure to achieve business objectives. Accordingly, it can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance 
against material misstatement or loss. 

The Board recognises that as the Group grows, the system on risk management and internal control will continually 
need to be enhanced to suit the needs and requirements of the expanding Group.

The Board is of the view that the Group’s risk management and internal control system is operating adequately and 
effectively, in all material aspects, based on the risk management and internal control system of the Group and has 
received the same assurance from the Managing Director and Group Accountant. 

Key Processes on Risk Management and Internal Control

The main features of the Group’s risk management and internal control system and the key processes that have 
been applied in reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system 
include the following:

Internal Audit

The Group has outsourced the internal audit function. To ensure independent and impartial appraisal, the Internal 
Auditor is given unrestricted access to all records, information, property, personnel and other relevant resources of 
the TAS Group. The internal audit review covers all the key functional areas and processes of the Group.

The Internal Auditor independently reviews and evaluates the adequacy and integrity of the internal controls put in 
place and the risk management processes, and reports the findings together with any remedial recommendations 
directly to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee considers the Internal Audit Report before making necessary 
recommendations to improve the risk management and internal control system to the Board of Directors periodically 
or as and when the situation requires.

Risk Management 

The Board has formalised the risk management policy and control framework which is embedded in the Group’s 
management system. The Group has an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant 
risks faced by the Group to ensure that all high risks are adequately addressed at various levels within the Group. 
The above exercise is monitored by the Management with the assistance of the Internal Auditor. A Risk Management 
Report is compiled and submitted to the Audit Committee which has been entrusted by the Board to assist its risk 
management responsibility. Such processes and procedures have been put in place for the financial year under 
review and up to the date of approval of this statement for inclusion in the Annual Report.
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Each department in the Group is responsible for the identification and assessment of its significant risks. The identified 
risks are assessed for likelihood of the risks occurring and the effect of impact. A risk rating [from 1 (lowest risk) to 
9 (highest risk)] is then accorded to each of the risk identified. The control effectiveness is considered and further 
risk control measures or action plans are taken to mitigate the risks to the desired level.

The above exercise is monitored by the Risk Management Working Committee and reported to the Audit Committee. 
The Risk Management Report is reviewed by the Audit Committee to ensure the adequacy and integrity of the 
system of internal control before making necessary recommendations to the Board of Directors. Emphasis is placed 
on reviewing and updating the significant risks affecting the business and business sustainability including policies 
and procedures by which these risks are managed.

Review of the Statement by External Auditors

As required by Paragraph 15.23 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, the 
external auditors have reviewed this Statement and reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention 
that causes them to believe that this statement is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the 
disclosures required by paragraphs 41 and 42 of the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines 
for Directors of Listed Issuers, nor is the Statement factually inaccurate.

Statement on 
Risk Management and Internal Control (cont’d)
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Chairman: 
Lau Kiing Yiing	 Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Members: 
Datu Haji Mohammed Sepuan Bin Anu	 Independent Non-Executive Director
Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Mohd Jamil Bin Johari	 Independent Non-Executive Director 
Ling Ka Chuan	 Independent Non-Executive Director

Composition

The Audit Committee has four (4) members, comprising of all independent non-executive directors, with the 
Chairman who is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.  The structure of composition is consistent 
with the Listing Requirements.

Audit Committee Meeting held during the Financial Year 2017

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the financial year under review with the following attendance record:

Name of Director			   Attendance

Lau Kiing Yiing			       5/5

Datu Haji Mohammed Sepuan Bin Anu		      5/5

Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Mohd Jamil Bin Johari		      5/5

Ling Ka Chuan			      4/5

In line with the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the following works were carried out by the Committee 
during the financial year ended 31 May 2017:

(a)	 Reviewed and discussed with the management the quarterly unaudited financial results of the Group 
focusing of matters significantly affecting the Group’s performance, compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act 2016, the applicable accounting standards, Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Main Market 
Listing Requirements and other relevant regulatory requirements, before recommending them to the Board 
for approval and subsequent release to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad; 

(b)	 Reviewed and discussed the annual audited financial statements of the Company and its group with the 
management as to their compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2016, the applicable accounting 
standards, Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Main Market Listing Requirements, and other relevant regulatory 
requirements before recommending them to the Board for approval and subsequent release to Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad; 

(c)	 Reviewed the annual internal audit plan and the audit programme with  the internal auditors to ensure adequate 
audit coverage of the key risk areas;

(d)	 Discussed the internal audit reports, their major findings, recommendations and the management’s response 
in addressing the issues found to ensure that risk issues were adequately addressed; 

(e)	 Reviewed and appraised the performance of the internal auditors before recommending their re-nomination 
to the Board; 
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(f)	 Reviewed and discussed with the external auditors, their annual audit planning memorandum which is inclusive 
of their areas of audit emphasis and audit procedures prior to commencement of their annual audit for the 
financial year ended 31 May 2017;

(g)	 Reviewed with the external auditors and the management, the results and recommendations of the external 
auditors and any significant audit issues arising therefrom;

(h)	 Appraised the performance and evaluated the independence and objectivity of the external auditors in 
providing their services and made recommendation to the Board on their re-appointment and the quantum 
of audit fees;

(i)	 Met with the external auditors twice without the presence of the management for discussions of additional 
matters in relation to audit issues noted in the course of their audit;

(j)	 Reviewed on a quarterly basis the related party transaction within the Company or the Group including any 
transaction to ensure that the transactions were on normal commercial terms which were not detrimental to 
the interest of minority;

(k)	 Reviewed quarterly the Risk Management Report from the Risk Management Working Committee, any 
significant risks, mitigation actions and made relevant recommendation to the Board for necessary actions; 
and

(l)	 Reviewed the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control to be published in the Annual Report.

Internal Audit Function

We have appointed an external firm to carry out the internal audit function.

Internal audit is responsible for the independent assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control systems in place in anticipation of the risk exposures of key business processes and to provide assurance 
on the systems and recommend improvements to the systems if necessary, so as to enable the Group to achieve 
its corporate objectives.
 
The main activities carried out by the internal auditor involve:

(a)	 Reviewing and appraising the adequacy, effectiveness and application of accounting, financial, operational 
and other controls, recommending improvement in control and promoting effective control in the Group at 
reasonable cost;

(b)	 Ascertaining the extent of compliance with established policies, procedures and statutory requirements;

(c)	 Ascertaining the extent to which the Group’s assets are accounted for and safeguarded from losses; 

(d)	 Appraising the reliability and usefulness of data and information generated for management; and

(e)	 Review the Risk Management Report from the Risk Management Working Committee. 

During the year, reviews of the existing internal controls covered under the audit plan revealed that they were 
generally satisfactory. In areas where controls were deemed inadequate, additional measures were recommended 
for implementation to address any weakness in the systems.

The costs incurred by the internal audit function in respect of financial year ended 31 May 2017 were RM36,000.
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DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT

The Directors submit herewith their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
for the financial year ended 31 May 2017.					   
					   
	
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES                     						   
					   
The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding. The principal activities and details of its 
subsidiaries are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.				  
	
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.	
	
	
RESULTS                       						    
				    Group	  Company 
				    RM	  RM 

(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company		   (14,034,717)	  816,081 

	
RESERVES AND PROVISIONS                          				  

There were no material transfers made to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year other than as 
disclosed in the financial statements.					   
	
	
DIVIDENDS                                						    
	
No dividend has been paid or declared since the end of the previous financial year. The Directors do not recommend 
the payment of any dividends in respect of the current financial year ended 31 May 2017.		
	
	
SHARE CAPITAL                           					   

The Company did not issue any shares or debentures during the financial year.		

Upon the commencement of the Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”) on 31 January 2017 which removed the concept 
of authorised share capital and par value of share capital, the share premium of RM27,639,472 became part of 
the Company’s share capital as of that date pursuant to the transitional provision set out in Section 618(2) of the 
Act. Consequently, the share capital of the Company as at 31 January 2017 became RM117,640,472 comprising 
180,002,000 issued ordinary shares.						    
				  
	
TREASURY SHARES                                        					   
	
By an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on 28 September 2016, the shareholders of 
the Company renewed the Directors’ authority for the Company to repurchase its own shares up to ten percent 
(10%) of its issued and paid-up share capital.					   
	
There were no shares repurchased during the financial year. The shares previously repurchased are held as treasury 
shares in accordance with Section 127(4)(b) of the Companies Act 2016. None of the treasury shares were resold 
or cancelled during the financial year. 						   
	
As at 31 May 2017, the Company held a total number of 4,405,400 treasury shares at a total carrying amount of 
RM1,776,765. Further details of the treasury shares are disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements.	
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DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT (cont’d)

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY                                  					   
	
The names of the Directors during the financial year and during the period from the end of the financial year to the 
date of this report are :-						    
	
Datu Haji Mohammed Sepuan Bin Anu  					   
Datuk Lau Nai Hoh					   
Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Mohd Jamil Bin Johari				  
Lau Choo Chin					   
Ling Ka Chuan					   
Lau Kiing Yiing					   
	
	
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS                                 					   
	
According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, the interests of the Directors in office at the end of the financial 
year in the ordinary shares of the Company and its subsidiary during the financial year were as follows :-		
	
Shareholdings in the Company						    
			   Number of ordinary shares 		
		  Balance at			    Balance at 
Names of Directors		  01.06.2016	 Acquired	 Disposed	  31.05.2017 
	
Datu Haji Mohammed Sepuan Bin Anu				  
- Direct interest		  15,000 	 –   	 –    	  15,000 

Datuk Lau Nai Hoh	
- Direct interest		  90,525,671 	  –   	 –    	  90,525,671 
- Indirect interest *		   1,281,317 	 –    	 –    	  1,281,317 
	
Lau Choo Chin	
- Direct interest		   409,006 	 –   	 –    	  409,006 
- Indirect interest *		  40,000 	 –   	 –    	  40,000 

Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Mohd Jamil					   
  Bin Johari	
- Direct interest		   10,000 	 –  	  –  	  10,000 
	
Ling Ka Chuan	
- Direct interest		  10,000 	  –   	 –   	  10,000 
	
Lau Kiing Yiing
- Direct interest		  10,000 	 –  	 –  	  10,000 

*	 Interest held by spouses and children treated as interest of the Directors in accordance with Section 59(11)
(c) of the Companies Act 2016.					   
	

Shareholdings in a wholly-owned subsidiary, TAS Epic Sdn. Bhd.

			   Number of ordinary shares 		
		  Balance at			   Balance at 
Names of Directors		  01.06.2016	 Acquired	 Disposed	  31.05.2017 
	
Datuk Lau Nai Hoh and					   
  Lau Choo Chin
- Indirect interest #		  –   	  2 	 –   	  2 
	
#	 Through interest held in the Company				  
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DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT (cont’d)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONT’D)   

By virtue of their shareholdings in the Company, Datuk Lau Nai Hoh and Lau Choo Chin are deemed to be interested 
in the shares of the other wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, namely Tuong Aik Shipyard Sdn. Bhd., Western 
Realty Sdn. Bhd. and TA Ventures (L) Ltd. and for which there were no movements in interests in the shares held 
during the financial year.
	
Other than as disclosed above, no other Directors in office at the end of the financial year held any interests in 
shares in the Company and its subsidiaries during the financial year.			 
	
	
DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS                                      					   
	
As at the end of the financial year and during the financial year, there did not subsist any arrangement to which the 
Company was a party, whereby the Directors might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or 
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.				  
	
Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive any benefits (other 
than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the Directors as 
shown in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with any 
Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member or with a company in which the Director has a substantial 
financial interest other than by virtue of transactions entered into in the ordinary course of business and as disclosed 
in Note 28 to the financial statements.					  
	
	
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION						    
	
The particulars of remuneration provided to the Directors of the Company are disclosed in Note 24 to the financial 
statements.						    
	
No indemnity was given to nor were there any insurance effected for the Directors or officers of the Company during 
the financial year.					   
	
	
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION						    
	
The details of remuneration paid or payable to the auditors of the Company are disclosed in Note 23 to the financial 
statements.						    
	
There were no indemnity given or insurance effected for the auditors of the Company during the financial year.	
	
	
OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION                                              				  
	
(a)	 Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable 

steps :-						    
	
(i)	 t	o ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making 

of allowance for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off 
and adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and		

(ii)	 to ensure that any current assets, which were unlikely to realise their values as shown in the accounting 
records in the ordinary course of business have been written down to an amount which they might be 
expected so to realise.
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DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT (cont’d)

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONT’D)	 	
 	

(b)	  At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances :-

(i)	 which would render the amount written off for bad debts and the amount of allowance for doubtful debts 
in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent;

(ii)	 which would render the values of current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company misleading;

(iii)	 which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of 
the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate; and

(iv)	 not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
which would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

	
(c)	 As at the date of this report, there does not exist :-

(i)	 any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the 
financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii)	 any contingent liability in respect of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of 
the financial year.

(d)	 In the opinion of the Directors :-

(i)	 no contingent liability or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within 
the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the 
Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due;

(ii)	 the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not 
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature; and

(iii)	 no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the 
end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of 
the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

AUDITORS
	
The auditors, Messrs. Folks DFK & Co., have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
	
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.			 
	
					   

	
……………………………………………..		 ……………………………………………..	
DATUK LAU NAI HOH		  LAU CHOO CHIN			 
Director		  Director		
	
	
Sibu, Sarawak
25 August 2017					   
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MAY 2017

		  		  2017	 2016
			   Note	  RM 	  RM 
ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment			   4 	  22,065,236 	  23,796,141 
Other investments			   6 	  26,388,062 	  26,013,416 
Deferred tax assets			   17 	  24,135	  20,279 
						    
				     48,477,433 	  49,829,836 
	

Current Assets	
Inventories			   7	  474,062,132 	  407,972,445 
Amount due from contract customers			  8	  29,439,236 	  56,743,568 
Trade and other receivables			   9	  36,171,724	  30,190,460 
Tax recoverable				     544,254 	  2,905,583 
Cash and bank balances			   11	  3,722,022 	  26,398,246 

				     543,939,368 	  524,210,302 
	
Total Assets				     592,416,801 	  574,040,138 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company
Share capital			   12	  117,640,472 	  90,001,000 
Treasury shares			   13	  (1,776,765)	  (1,776,765)
Reserves			   14	  44,852,244 	  84,948,946 

Total Equity				     160,715,951 	  173,173,181 

Non-Current Liabilities
Hire-purchase payable			   15	  23,679 	  162,182 
Retirement benefits			   16	  1,005,644 	  844,962 
Deferred tax liabilities			   17	  2,153,583 	  2,200,016 
				  
				     3,182,906 	  3,207,160 
	

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables			   18	  375,345,657 	  364,405,995 
Tax payable				    –  	  205,499 
Hire-purchase payable			   15	  138,503 	  132,303 
Short term borrowings :					   
- Bank overdraft			   19	  2,231,159 	 – 
- Other borrowings			   19	  50,802,625 	  32,916,000 
				  
				     428,517,944 	  397,659,797 
				  
Total Liabilities				     431,700,850 	  400,866,957 
					   
Total Equity and Liabilities				     592,416,801 	  574,040,138 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2017

				    2017	 2016
			   Note	  RM 	  RM
	
Revenue			   20	  20,704,738 	  115,789,256 
	
Cost of sales			   21	  (21,536,213)	  (115,906,791)
	

Gross loss				     (831,475)	  (117,535)

Other income				     964,859 	  6,410,747 
Administrative expenses				     (4,363,544)	  (4,974,543)
Other operating expenses				     (8,219,739)	  (21,408,592)
	

Operating loss				     (12,449,899)	  (20,089,923)
Finance costs			   22	  (1,504,677)	  (1,131,075)

Loss before taxation			   23	  (13,954,576)	  (21,220,998)
Income tax expense			   25	  (80,141)	  (639,547)

Loss for the year				     (14,034,717)	  (21,860,545)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or
  loss, net of tax effects :
Net gain on changes in fair value of available-for-sale
  financial assets				     1,054,675 	  505,768 
Transferred to profit or loss on disposal of available-
  for-sale financial assets				     (185,290)	  (155,947)
Gain on foreign currency translation				     708,102 	  3,559,448 
	
Total other comprehensive income for the year			    1,577,487 	  3,909,269 

Total comprehensive loss for the year	 		   (12,457,230)	  (17,951,276)

Attributable to owners of the Company :
- Loss for the year				     (14,034,717)	  (21,860,545)
- Total comprehensive loss for the year			    (12,457,230)	  (17,951,276)

	
Loss per share attributable to owners of the
  Company (Sen) :
- Basic			   26	  (7.99) 	 (12.45)
				    		
					   

The annexed notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 
OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2017

				    2017	 2016
		   		  RM 	  RM 
Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before taxation 				     (13,954,576)	  (21,220,998)

Adjustments for :-
Depreciation				     1,775,785 	  1,836,441 
Income from unit trust funds				     (978,204)	  (622,211)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets			    (49,971)	  (8,257)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment			    (2,641)	  (8,253)
Impairment loss on :
- trade receivables				     753,927 	  5,495,517 
- other receivables				     –   	  11,625,363 
Interest expense				     1,522,197 	  1,264,008 
Interest income				     (46,345)	  (35,223)
Write down in value of inventories				     7,389,360 	 –   
Defined benefit cost		   		  160,682 	  149,450 
Deposit forfeited				     76,452 	  170,554 
Property, plant and equipment written off			    1,668 	  2,933 
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange				     (556,347)	  (1,689,333)
Reversal of expenses over accrued				     (7,366)	 – 

Operating loss before working capital changes			    (3,915,379)	  (3,040,009)

Increase in inventories				    (58,068,293)	  (211,124,783)
Decrease in amount due from contract customers			    27,996,912 	  114,512,331 
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables			    (5,682,808)	  43,776,729 
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables 			    (3,595,295)	  79,650,698 

Cash (utilised in)/generated from operations			    (43,264,863)	  23,774,966 

Interest paid				     (17,059)	  (18,836)
Interest received				     46,345 	  35,223 
Tax refunded				     2,811,664 	  51,338 
Tax paid				     (786,263)	  (1,408,738)

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities			    (41,210,176)	  22,433,953 

	 The annexed notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2017 (cont’d)

				    2017	 2016
				     RM 	  RM 
Cash flows from investing activities	
Income from unit trust funds				     978,204 	  622,211 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (Note 32)			    (46,549)	  (428,222)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment		   2,642 	  11,745 
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets			    (15,655,421)	  (12,448,751)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets		   16,200,131 	  2,000,000 
	
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities			    1,479,007 	  (10,243,017)
	
	
Cash flows from financing activities				  
Shares repurchased				    –   	  (115,298)
Net drawdown/(repayment) of bankers’ acceptances and revolving		
  credits				    16,320,025 	  (10,879,000)
Interests paid on bankers’ acceptances and revolving credits		   (1,494,544)	  (1,231,607)
Payments of hire-purchase instalments			    (142,896)	  (119,080)
	
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities			   14,682,585 	  (12,344,985)
	
	
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents			    (25,048,584)	  (154,049)
	
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year			    26,398,246 	  24,290,163 
		
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates			    141,201 	  2,262,132 
	
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year			    1,490,863 	  26,398,246 
	

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year comprised :	
Cash and bank balances (Note 11)				     3,722,022 	  26,398,246 
Bank overdraft (Note 19)				     (2,231,159)	 –   
	
				     1,490,863 	  26,398,246 
	

	 The annexed notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF 
FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 MAY 2017

				    2017	 2016
			   Note	 RM	  RM 
ASSETS					   
	
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment			   4	  1 	  1 
Investments in subsidiaries			   5	  80,102,754 	  80,102,752 
Other investments			   6	  26,388,062 	  26,013,416 
Deferred tax assets			   17	  24,135 	  20,279 
						    
				     106,514,952 	  106,136,448 
	

Current Assets	
Other receivables			   9	  6,006 	  4,862 
Amount due from subsidiaries 			   10	  17,802,986 	  16,468,767 
Tax recoverable				     129,352 	  118,920 
Cash and bank balances			   11	  192,484 	  208,179 
						    
				     18,130,828 	  16,800,728 

Total Assets				     124,645,780 	  122,937,176 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES	

Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company	
Share capital			   12	  117,640,472 	  90,001,000 
Treasury shares			   13	  (1,776,765)	  (1,776,765)
Reserves			   14	  8,479,438 	  34,433,444 

Total Equity				     124,343,145 	  122,657,679 

Non-Current Liabilities					   
Retirement benefits			   16 	  100,565 	  84,497 

Current Liabilities					   
Other payables 			   18 	  202,070 	  195,000 

	
Total Liabilities				     302,635 	  279,497 

Total Equity and Liabilities				     124,645,780 	  122,937,176 

	 The annexed notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



42
TAS OFFSHORE BERHAD (Company No. 810179-T)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2017

				    2017	 2016
			   Note	  RM 	  RM 
	
Revenue			   20	  978,204 	  622,211
	
Other income				     687,114	  710,617 

Administrative expenses				     (748,051)	  (699,948)

Profit before taxation			   23	  917,267 	  632,880 

Income tax expense			   25	  (101,186)	  (117,013)
	

Profit for the year				     816,081 	  515,867 

Other comprehensive income	
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or				  
  loss, net of tax effects :	
Net gain on changes in fair value of available-for-sale
  financial assets				     1,054,675 	  505,768 
Transferred to profit or loss on disposal of available-				  
  for-sale financial assets				     (185,290)	  (155,947)

Total other comprehensive income for the year			    869,385 	  349,821 
	

Total comprehensive income for the year			    1,685,466 	  865,688

	 The annexed notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF 
CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2017
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STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2017 (cont’d)
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STATEMENT OF 
CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2017

				    2017	 2016
				     RM 	  RM 
Cash flows from operating activities					   
	
Profit before taxation				     917,267 	  632,880 
	
Adjustments for :-
Income from unit trust funds				     (978,204)	  (622,211)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets			    (49,971)	  (8,257)
Interest income				     (634,912)	  (702,360)
Defined benefit cost				     16,068 	  14,945 

Operating loss before working capital changes			   (729,752)	  (685,003)

Increase in receivables				     (1,144)	  (2,862)
Increase in payables				     7,070 	  3,750 

Cash utilised in operations				     (723,826)	  (684,115)

Interest received				    634,912 	  702,360 
Tax paid				     (140,474)	  (225,000)
Tax refunded				     25,000 	  51,338 

Net cash used in operating activities				     (204,388)	  (155,417)
	

Cash flows from investing activities	
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 5)				     (2)	 –  
Net (advances to)/repayment from subsidiaries			    (1,334,219)	  9,786,050 
Income from unit trust funds				     978,204 	  622,211 
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets			    (15,655,421)	  (12,448,751)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets		   16,200,131 	  2,000,000 
	

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities			    188,693 	  (40,490)

Cash flows from financing activities		
Shares repurchased				    –   	  (115,298)

Net cash used in financing activities				    –   	  (115,298)
	

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents			    (15,695)	  (311,205)
	
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year			    208,179 	  519,384 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year			    192,484 	  208,179 
	

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year comprised :
Cash and bank balances (Note 11)				     192,484 	  208,179

 	 The annexed notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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TAS OFFSHORE BERHAD (Company No. 810179-T)

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
- 31 MAY 2017 

1.	 GENERAL INFORMATION                                 				  
	

	 TAS Offshore Berhad is a public company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.  The 
Company is listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.			 
					   

	 The registered office and the principal place of business is located at Lot 199, Jalan Sg. Ma’aw, Sg. Bidut, 
96000 Sibu, Sarawak.						    
					   

	 The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are 
set out in Note 5 to the financial statements. 					   
					   

	 These financial statements comprised the financial statements of the Group and the financial statements of 
the Company and they are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”).				  
	

	 The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 August 2017.	
	

					   
2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES        	

	
2.1	 Basis of Preparation						    

					   
		 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with 

Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards and 
the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.			 
	

		 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company are prepared under the historical cost 
convention unless otherwise indicated in the summary of significant accounting policies.	
	

		 The accounting policies applied by the Group and the Company are consistent with those applied in the 
previous financial year other than the application of a number of amendments to MFRSs as disclosed 
in Note 2.2 below.

	
2.2	 Application of Amendments to MFRSs					   

	
	 During the financial year, the Group and the Company have applied the following amendments to MFRSs 

issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB’’) for the first time for the financial year 
beginning on 1 June 2016 :-

		 Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 128 - Investment Entities : Applying	
		   the Consolidation Exception (effective on 1 January 2016)		
		 Amendments to MFRS 101 - Disclosure Initiative (effective on 1 January 2016)	
		 Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 138 - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
		   Depreciation and Amortisation (effective on 1 January 2016)		
		 Amendments to MFRS 127 - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (effective
	   on 1 January 2016)
	 Amendments to MFRSs Classified as “Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012 - 2014
	   Cycle” (effective on 1 January 2016)					   

	
	 The application of the Amendments has no impact on the Group’s and on the Company’s financial 

statements for the current and prior periods.				 
	



annual report 2017
47

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.3	 New MFRSs and IC Interpretations and Amendments to MFRSs That Are In Issue But Not Yet 
Effective	

	 The Group and the Company have not early adopted the following new MFRSs and IC Interpretations 
and amendments to MFRSs that have been issued by the MASB but are not yet effective :-		
	

	 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 
	 Amendments to MFRS 107 - Disclosure Initiative 
		 Amendments to MFRS 112 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
	 Amendments to MFRSs Classified as “Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014 -
	   2016 Cycle” :
	 - Amendments to MFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

	 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018		
	 MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued in July 2014)
	 MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
	 Clarifications to MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
	 Amendments to MFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
	 Amendments to MFRS 4 - Applying MFRS 9, Financial Instruments with MFRS 4, Insurance
 	   Contracts
	 Amendments to MFRS 140 - Transfer of Investment Property
	 Amendments to MFRSs Classified as “Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014 -
	   2016 Cycle” :
	 - Amendments to MFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards
	 - Amendments to MFRS 128, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
	 IC Interpretation 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
		
	 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
	 MFRS 16, Leases
	 IC Interpretation 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments				  

	
	 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
	 MFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

	 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined by the MASB
	 Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 
	   Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture	

	 The Group and the Company will apply the above new MFRSs and IC Interpretations and amendments to 
MFRSs that are applicable once they become effective. Their main features are summarised below.	

(a)	 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

(i)	 Amendments to MFRS 107 - Disclosure Initiative

	 The Amendments to MFRS 107 Statement of Cash Flows require an entity to provide 
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising 
from financing activities, including changes from cash flows and non-cash changes.
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TAS OFFSHORE BERHAD (Company No. 810179-T)

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.3	 New MFRSs and IC Interpretations and Amendments to MFRSs That Are In Issue But Not Yet 
Effective (Cont’d)

(a)	 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 (Cont’d)

(ii)	 Amendments to MFRS 112 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses 

		 The Amendments to MFRS 112 Income Taxes clarify that :-

•	 decreases in value of a debt instrument measured at fair value for which the tax base 
remains at its original cost give rise to a deductible temporary difference. The estimate 
of probable future taxable profits may include recovery of some of an entity’s assets 
for more than their carrying amounts if sufficient evidence exists that it is probable the 
entity will achieve this. 

•	 deductible temporary differences should be compared with the entity’s future taxable 
profits excluding tax deductions resulting from the reversal of those deductible 
temporary differences when an entity evaluates whether it has sufficient future taxable 
profits. In addition, when an entity assesses whether taxable profits will be available, 
it should consider tax law restrictions with regards to the utilisation of the deduction.	
		

(iii)	 Amendments to MFRSs Classified as “Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014 
- 2016 Cycle” : Amendments to MFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

	 The Amendments clarify the scope of the Standard by specifying that the disclosure 
requirements in the Standard apply to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, 
associates and unconsolidated structured entities that are classified as held for sale, as 
held for distribution or as discontinued operations in accordance with MFRS 5 Non-current 
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. 

	 The Amendments also clarify that an entity is not required to disclose summarised financial 
information when its subsidiary, joint venture or associate is classified as held for sale in 
accordance with MFRS 5.

(b)	 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

(i)	 MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued in July 2014)

	 The Standard replaces earlier versions of MFRS 9 and introduces a package of improvements 
which includes a classification and measurement model, a single forward-looking ‘expected 
loss’ impairment model and a substantially-reformed approach to hedge accounting.

	 The key enhancements of MFRS 9 are :

•	 Under MFRS 9, all recognised financial assets are required to be subsequently measured 
at either amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) 
or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) on the basis of both an entity’s business 
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics 
of the financial assets. These requirements improve and simplify the approach for 
classification and measurement of financial assets as the numerous categories of 
financial assets under MFRS 139 had been replaced.	
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.3	 New MFRSs and IC Interpretations and Amendments to MFRSs That Are In Issue But Not Yet 
Effective (Cont’d)

(b)	 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

(i)	 MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued in July 2014) (Cont’d)             		
	
The key enhancements of MFRS 9 are (Cont’d) :

•	 Most of the requirements in MFRS 139 for classification and measurement of financial 
liabilities were carried forward unchanged to MFRS 9, except for the measurement 
of financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL. Under MFRS 139, the entire amount of 
the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as FVTPL is presented 
in profit or loss. However, MFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value 
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability 
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of 
changes in the liability’s own credit risk in other comprehensive income would create 
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable 
to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

•	 In relation to the impairment of financial assets, MFRS 9 requires an expected credit 
loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under MFRS 139. Under 
MFRS 9, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit 
losses are recognised. Instead, an entity always accounts for expected credit losses 
and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes 
in credit risk since initial recognition.

•	 The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge 
accounting mechanisms currently available in MFRS 139 i.e. fair value hedges, 
cash flow hedges and hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation. MFRS 9 
incorporates a new hedge accounting model that aligns the hedge accounting more 
closely with an entity’s risk management activities. The new hedge accounting model 
has also expanded the scope of eligibility of hedge items and hedging instruments 
respectively.	

		
(ii)	 MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

	 MFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for 
revenue arising from contracts with customers. MFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue 
recognition guidance including MFRS 111, MFRS 118 and the related IC Interpretations 
when it becomes effective.

	 	The core principle of MFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of 
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to 
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. An entity 
recognises revenue in accordance with that core principle by applying the following steps :-

	 Step 1		 Identify the contract(s) with a customer			 
Step 2		 Identify the performance obligations in the contract			 
Step 3		 Determine the transaction price

	 Step 4		 Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the 		
	 contract 

	 Step 5		 Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance 		
	 obligation				  
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TAS OFFSHORE BERHAD (Company No. 810179-T)

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.3	 New MFRSs and IC Interpretations and Amendments to MFRSs That Are In Issue But Not Yet 
Effective (Cont’d)

(b)	 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)	

(ii)	 MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Cont’d)

	U nder MFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is 
satisfied i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular performance 
obligation is transferred to the customer. MFRS 15 also requires more extensive disclosures.

(iii)	 Clarifications to MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

	 The Amendments clarify how certain principles should be applied in :

•	 identifying whether performance obligations are distinct;	

•	 determining whether an entity is a principal or an agent; and

•	 assessing whether revenue from a licence of intellectual property is recognised over 
time or at a point in time.					   
	

(iv)	 Amendments to MFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment 
Transactions

	 The Amendments to MFRS 2 Share-based Payment provide specific guidance on how to 
account for the following situations :

•	 the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-settled 
share-based payments;

•	 share-based payment transactions with a net settlement feature for withholding tax 
obligations; and

•	 a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that changes 
the classification of the transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled.

(v)	 Amendments to MFRS 4 - Applying MFRS 9, Financial Instruments with MFRS 4, 
Insurance Contracts

	 The Amendments to MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts address concerns arising from 
implementing the new MFRS 9 Financial Instruments before the implementation of the new 
MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts which shall only become effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2021. These concerns include temporary volatility in reported results.

	 The Amendments have introduced two additional voluntary options, namely an overlay 
approach and a deferral approach to be applied subject to certain criteria being met, which 
help to address temporary volatility in reported results of entities dealing with insurance 
contracts.

	 The overlay approach involves option to recognise the possible volatility in other 
comprehensive income, instead of profit or loss, whilst the deferral approach provides 
temporary exemption from applying MFRS 9 for entities whose activities are predominantly 
connected with insurance.					   
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.3	 New MFRSs and IC Interpretations and Amendments to MFRSs That Are In Issue But Not Yet 
Effective (Cont’d)

(b)	 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

(vi)	 Amendments to MFRS 140 - Transfers of Investment Property

	 The Amendments to MFRS 140 Investment Property clarify that an entity shall transfer 
a property to, or from, investment property when, and only when, there is evidence of a 
change in use. A change of use occurs if property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition 
of investment property. A change in management’s intentions for the use of a property by 
itself does not constitute evidence of a change in use.

(vii)	 Amendments to MFRSs Classified as “Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 
2014 - 2016 Cycle”

	 The Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle include amendments to 
the following MFRSs :	

•	 The Amendments to MFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting 
Standards have removed certain provisions that have served their intended 
purposes.	

•	 The Amendments to MFRS 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures clarify that 
the election to measure at fair value through profit or loss an investment in an associate 
or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is a venture capital organisation, or other 
qualifying entity, is available for each investment in an associate or joint venture on an 
investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recognition.

(viii)	 IC Interpretation 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

	 The IC Interpretation addresses which exchange rate to use in reporting foreign currency 
transactions that involve advance consideration paid or received.			 
			 

(c)	 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

(i)	 MFRS 16, Leases

	 MFRS 16 will supersede the existing MFRS 117 Leases, IC Interpretation 4 Determining 
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, IC Interpretation 115 Operating Leases – 
Incentives and IC Interpretation 127 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving 
the Legal Form of a Lease and it sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosures of leases.

	U nder the existing MFRS 117, lessees and lessors are required to classify their leases as 
either finance leases or operating leases and account for those two types of leases differently. 
It requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities arising from finance leases but not 
from operating leases.

	 The new MFRS 16 introduces a single accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise 
assets and liabilities for the rights and obligations arising from all leases and hence eliminates 
the distinction between finance leases and operating leases. As a consequence, a lessee 
recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities arising from operating leases. The right-
of-use asset is depreciated in accordance with the principle in MFRS 116 Property, Plant 
and Equipment and the lease liability is accreted over time with interest expense recognised 
in the profit or loss.		
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TAS OFFSHORE BERHAD (Company No. 810179-T)

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.3	 New MFRSs and IC Interpretations and Amendments to MFRSs That Are In Issue But Not Yet 
Effective (Cont’d)

(c)	 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 (Cont’d)

(ii)	 IC Interpretation 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 

	 MFRS 112 Income Taxes, includes requirements on recognition and measurement of tax 
assets and liabilities, but does not specify how to reflect uncertainty. As a result, entities 
apply diverse reporting methods when the application of tax law is uncertain.

	 When there is uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Interpretation addresses :

•	 whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;

•	 the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation 
authorities;

•	 how an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused 
tax credits and tax rates; and

•	 how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.

(d)	 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

MFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

	 MFRS 17 will supersede the existing MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and related Interpretations. The 
new Standard introduces consistent accounting for all insurance contracts based on a current 
measurement model. MFRS 17 requires entities that issue insurance contracts to recognise 
and measure a group of insurance contracts at : (i) a risk-adjusted present value of future cash 
flows that incorporates information that is consistent with observable market information; plus 
(ii) an amount representing the unearned profit in the group of contracts. Profits from the group 
of insurance contracts are recognised over the insurance coverage period. In addition, MFRS 17 
changes the financial statements presentations of insurance service results whereby insurance 
revenue is presented separately from insurance finance income or expenses.

	 For insurance contracts with coverage period of one year or less, MFRS 17 allows an entity to 
measure the amount relating to remaining service by allocating the premium over the coverage 
period.

	 The initial application of MFRS 9, MFRS 15 and MFRS 16 may have a material impact on the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company. However, the impact has yet to be quantified as at the 
date of these financial statements. The initial application of the other new MFRSs, IC Interpretations 
and amendments to MFRSs is not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s and on the 
Company’s financial statements.
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2.4	 Basis of Consolidation

	 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its 
subsidiaries. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting date as 
the Company. The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies 
for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.	

	 Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group 
controls an entity when the Group :

•	 has power over the entity;	

•	 is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity; and 

•	 has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

		 The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there 
are changes to one or more of the three elements of controls listed above.

	 Consolidation of a subsidiary begins from the date the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and 
ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.

	 In preparing consolidated financial statements, intra-group balances and transactions and the resulting 
unrealised profits are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses are eliminated on consolidation and 
the relevant assets are assessed for impairment. The consolidated financial statements reflect external 
transactions and balances only. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements 
of subsidiaries to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies. The total comprehensive 
income of a subsidiary is attributed to the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results 
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

	 Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are 
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling 
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference 
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the 
consideration paid or received by the Group is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners 
of the Company. If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets (including any goodwill) and 
liabilities of the subsidiary and non-controlling interests will be derecognised at their carrying amounts 
at the date when control is lost. Any investment retained in the former subsidiary is recognised at its 
fair value at the date when control is lost. The resulting difference between the amounts derecognised 
and the aggregate of the fair value of consideration received and investment retained is recognised as 
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.			 

			 
2.5	 Business Combinations	

	 Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration 
transferred for the acquisition of an acquiree is measured at fair value which is calculated as the sum 
of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred, equity interests issued and 
contingent consideration given. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as an expense in the periods 
in which the costs are incurred. 

	 Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination 
are measured initially at their acquisition-date fair values, except for non-current assets (or disposal 
group) that are classified as held for sale which shall be measured at fair value less costs to sell.	
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2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)	
	
2.5	 Business Combinations (Cont’d)

	 Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount of 
any non-controlling interests and the acquisition-date fair value of any previously held equity interest 
over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. 
The excess of the Group’s interest in the net amounts of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities over the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests 
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previously held equity interest is recognised immediately in 
profit or loss.

	 Non-controlling interests represent that portion of profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary not 
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Group. For each business combination, non-controlling 
interests are measured either at their fair value at the acquisition date or at the non-controlling interests’ 
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s identifiable net assets. Non-controlling interests in the net assets 
of consolidated subsidiaries comprised the amount of non-controlling interests at the date of original 
combination and their share of changes in equity since the date of combination.

	 In a business combination achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is remeasured at its 
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

2.6	 Goodwill

	 Goodwill arising on the acquisitions of subsidiaries is recognised as an asset and carried at cost as 
established at the acquisition date less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for 
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
value may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill from acquisition date is allocated 
to each of the Group’s cash-generating unit (“CGU”) or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit 
from the synergies of the combination in which the goodwill arose. The test for impairment of goodwill 
on consolidation is in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for impairment of non-financial 
assets. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

	 Where goodwill forms part of a CGU or groups of CGUs and part of the operation within that unit is 
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount 
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of 
in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation and the portion of the 
CGU retained.

2.7	 Foreign Currencies

2.7.1	 Functional and presentation currency

	 The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are presented in the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates i.e. the entity’s functional currency. 
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is also 
the Company’s functional currency.

2.7.2	 Foreign currency transactions and balances

	 In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other 
than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded in the functional currencies 
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At each reporting date, foreign 
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting 
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the date of the transactions. Non-monetary items that are 
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date 
when the fair value was determined.
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2.7	 Foreign Currencies (Cont’d)

2.7.2	 Foreign currency transactions and balances (Cont’d)
	

	 Exchange differences arising from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the 
translation of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.	

	 Exchange differences arising on the translation of foreign currency non-monetary items carried 
at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for the differences arising on 
the translation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains or losses are recognised in 
other comprehensive income. Exchange differences arising from such non-monetary items are 
recognised to other comprehensive income.

2.7.3	 Foreign operations

	 The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a functional currency different 
from the presentation currency (RM) of the consolidated financial statements are translated into 
RM as follows :-

(a)	 Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at 
the closing rate at the date of that statement of financial position;

(b)	 Income and expenses for each statement presenting profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income are translated at average exchange rates for the year, which approximates the 
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions; and

(c)	 All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and are 
accumulated in foreign currency translation reserve within equity.		
	

		 Exchange differences arising from monetary items that form part of the Company’s net investment 
in a foreign operation and that are denominated in the functional currency of the Company or 
the foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss of the Company or of the foreign operation, 
as appropriate. In the Group’s financial statements, such exchange differences are recognised 
initially in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under foreign currency 
translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount recognised in 
other comprehensive income and taken to equity under foreign currency translation reserve will 
be reclassified to profit or loss.

	 Goodwill and fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on 
the acquisition of foreign operations are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operations 
and are recorded in the functional currency of the foreign operations and translated at the closing 
rate at the reporting date.

2.8	 Investments in Subsidiaries 

	 In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less 
any accumulated impairment losses.  The investments are reviewed for impairment in accordance with 
the Group’s accounting policy for impairment of non-financial assets. On disposal of such investments, 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the net carrying value of the investments is 
recognised as a gain or loss on disposal in the Company’s profit or loss.		
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2.9	 Property, Plant and Equipment					   
	

	 Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition 
of the asset.					   
	

	 The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying 
amount of the item or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and 
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

	 Capital work-in-progress is not amortised. Leasehold land is amortised on a straight line basis over 
the remaining lease period of 60 years.  All other property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the 
straight-line basis so as to write off the cost of the assets to their residual values over their estimated 
useful lives.  Depreciation on capital work-in-progress commences when the assets are ready for their 
intended use.  Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and 
their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the 
lease terms. The estimated useful lives of the Group’s property, plant and equipment are as follows :-

	 Buildings and workers’ quarters 	 10 to 50 years
	 Office furniture, fittings and equipment	 5 to10 years
	 Plant and machinery	 5 to10 years
	 Motor vehicles	 5 years
	 Slipway and jetty	 10 years				  

	 The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed at each financial year end with the effect 
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed for impairment in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for impairment of non-
financial assets.

	 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.  The difference between the net disposal proceeds, if 
any, and the net carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. 

2.10	 Non-current Assets (or Disposal Groups) Classified as Held for Sale

	 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale if their carrying amounts 
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition 
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available 
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary.

	 On initial classification as held for sale, non-current assets or disposal groups (other than deferred tax 
assets, financial assets and inventories) are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair 
value less costs to sell. Any differences are included in profit or loss.

		
2.11	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

	 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets (other than inventories, assets arising from construction 
contracts, deferred tax assets and non-current assets or disposal groups held for sale) are reviewed 
for impairment at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment.  If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated to determine 
the amount of impairment loss.  For goodwill recognised in a business combination and that has an 
indefinite useful life and intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is 
estimated annually or more frequently when indicators of impairment are identified.	
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2.11	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets (Cont’d)

	 An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or a cash generating unit (“CGU”) 
exceeds its recoverable amount. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates 
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets. 
Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs (or groups of CGUs) are allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of any goodwill arising from a business combination allocated to the units (or groups 
of units) and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the units (or groups of units) on 
a pro rata basis.

	 The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its 
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. 

	 An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

	 Impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period. An impairment loss for an asset other 
than goodwill is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of an 
asset other than goodwill is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss for 
an asset other than goodwill is recognised in profit or loss.

2.12	 Construction Contracts	

2.12.1	Revenue and expense recognition

	 When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract 
revenue 	and contract cost are recognised over the period of the contract as revenue and 
expenses 	respectively using the percentage of completion method, determined by reference to 
surveys 	of work performed or to the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed 
to-date bear to the estimated total costs for the contract, where appropriate.

	 When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be ascertained reliably, contract revenue 
is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are estimated to be recoverable 
and contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

	 When it is estimated that the total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected 
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

2.12.2	Gross amount due from/(to) customers for contract work

	 Amount due from/(to) customers for contract work is the net amount of cost incurred for 
construction contracts-in-progress plus profit attributable to contracts-in-progress less foreseeable 
losses, if any, and progress billings.  Contract costs incurred to-date include costs directly related 
to the contract or attributable to contract activities in general and costs specifically chargeable 
to the customers under the terms of the contract.	
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2.13	 Inventories

	 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

	 Cost of raw materials and consumables comprise the original costs of purchase and incidental 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.  In the case of 
work-in-progress, cost include costs of direct materials, direct labour and attributable production 
overheads.	

	 The cost of raw materials and consumables is determined using the weighted average cost method 
whereas cost of work-in-progress and completed vessels is determined using specific identification of 
their individual costs.

	 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.14	 Financial Assets 

	 The Group recognises all financial assets in its statement of financial position when, and only when, 
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. All regular way purchases 
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting. A regular 
way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset that requires delivery of asset within the 
time frame established generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned. Trade date 
accounting refers to :

•	 the recognition of an asset to be received and the liability to pay for it on the trade date i.e. the 
date the Group commits itself to purchase or sell an asset; and

•	 derecognition of an asset that is sold, the recognition of any gain or loss on disposal and the 
recognition of a receivable from the buyer for payment on the trade date.

2.14.1	Classification and measurement

	 Financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair 
value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

	 Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories depending on the nature 
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

(a)	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

	 Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss when the financial assets 
are either held for trading or designated as such upon initial recognition.

	 A financial asset is classified as held for trading if :

•	 it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

•	 on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the  
Group  manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; 
or

•	 it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
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2.14	 Financial Assets (Cont’d)

2.14.1	Classification and measurement (Cont’d)

(a)	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont’d)

	 After initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at 
fair value with any gains or losses arising from change in fair value recognised in profit or 
loss. The net gains or losses do not include any exchange differences, dividend or interest 
earned on the financial asset. Exchange differences, dividend and interest earned on financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised separately in profit or loss as part 
of other income or other expenses.

	 Derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of unquoted equity instruments 
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less any impairment 
losses.	

(b)	 Held-to-maturity investments

	 Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments and fixed maturity dates that the Group has the positive intention and ability to 
hold to maturity.

	 Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate method less any impairment losses. A gain or loss 
is recognised in profit or loss when the held-to-maturity investment is derecognised or 
impaired, and through the amortisation process.

(c)	 Loans and receivables

	 Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Trade receivables and other receivables 
and cash and cash equivalents (other than bank overdrafts) are classified as loans and 
receivables. 

	 Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method less any impairment losses. Gains and losses are recognised 
in profit or loss when loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through the 
amortisation process.

(d)	 Available-for-sale financial assets

	 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as 
available for sale or are not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments 
or at fair value through profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial assets comprise quoted 
and unquoted equity and debt instruments that are not held for trading.
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2.14	 Financial Assets (Cont’d)

2.14.1	Classification and measurement (Cont’d)

(d)	 Available-for-sale financial assets (Cont’d)

	 Subsequent to initial recognition, quoted equity and debt instruments are measured at fair 
value and investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an 
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost. A 
gain or loss from changes in fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income, except 
that impairment losses, foreign exchange gains or losses on monetary instruments and 
interest calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified 
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment when the financial asset is 
derecognised. Dividends on an equity instrument are recognised in profit or loss when the 
Group’s right to receive payment is established.	

2.14.2	Impairment of financial assets

	 The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence 
that a financial asset, other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, is impaired. 
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when objective evidence indicates that a loss 
event  has occurred after the initial recognition of the assets and that the loss event had a negative 
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be reliably estimated. Losses 
expected as a result of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognised. For quoted equity 
instrument, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost is 
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

	 An amount of impairment loss in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost is measured 
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate i.e. the effective rate 
computed at initial recognition. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through an allowance 
account. The amount of loss is recognised in profit or loss.

	 If in a subsequent period the amount of the impairment loss on financial assets measured at 
amortised cost decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring 
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by 
adjusting the allowance account to the extent that the carrying amount of the financial asset does 
not exceed its amortised cost had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment 
is reversed. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

	 When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss in relation to decline 
in fair value previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity and 
recognised in profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment even though the financial asset has not 
been derecognised. The amount of cumulative loss that is reclassified is the difference between 
the acquisition cost (less any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value, less 
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

	 Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument classified 
as available-for-sale is not reversed through profit or loss. Increase in fair value, if any, subsequent 
to the impairment loss, is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2.14	 Financial Assets (Cont’d)

2.14.2	Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

	 If the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale, increases in a subsequent 
period and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss 
was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed with the amount of the reversal 
is recognised in profit or loss.

	 An amount of impairment loss in respect of financial assets carried at cost is measured as the 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such 
impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.

2.14.3	Derecognition of financial assets

	 The Group derecognises a financial asset when, and only when, the contractual right to the cash 
flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the financial asset without retaining control 
or transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset to another 
party. 

	 On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and 
the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised 
in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. 

2.15	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank balances, deposits with licensed banks, bank 
overdrafts and highly liquid investments which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.  The statements of cash flows are prepared 
using the indirect method.

	 Cash and cash equivalents (other than bank overdrafts) are categorised and measured as loans and 
receivables in accordance with policy Note 2.14.1(c).

2.16	 Share Capital

	 Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Distributions to holders of ordinary shares are debited directly 
to equity and dividends declared on or before the reporting date are recognised as liabilities. Costs 
directly attributable to equity transactions are accounted for as a deduction, net of tax, from equity.	

2.17	 Treasury Shares

	 Shares repurchased by the Company are held as treasury shares and are measured and carried at the 
cost of purchase.  Treasury shares are presented in the financial statements as a set-off against equity.

	 No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of treasury 
shares.  Should such shares be re-issued by re-sale in the open market, the difference between the 
sales consideration and the carrying amount of the treasury shares is shown as a movement in equity.  
Where treasury shares are distributed as share dividends, the cost of the treasury shares is applied in 
the reduction of the share premium account or distributable retained profits or both.	
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2.18	 Financial Liabilities

	 The Group recognises all financial liabilities in its statement of financial position when, and only when, 
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

2.18.1	Classification and measurement

	 Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of other financial liabilities, 
directly attributable transaction costs. 	

	 Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or 
other financial liabilities.

(a)	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

	 Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit or loss when the financial liability is 
either held for trading or it is designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. 
			 

	 A financial liability is classified as held for trading if :

•	 it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

•	 on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the  
Group  manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; 
or

•	 it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

	 After initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured 
at fair value with any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in profit 
or loss. The net gains or losses recognised in profit or loss do not include any exchange 
differences or interest paid on the financial liability. Exchange differences and interest 
expense on financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised separately 
in profit or loss as part of other income or other expenses.	

	 Derivative liability that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity 
instrument whose fair value cannot be reliably measured is measured at cost.		
	

(b)	 Other financial liabilities 

	 All financial liabilities other than those categorised as fair value through profit or loss are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.  Other 
financial liabilities of the Group comprise trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

	 A gain or loss on other financial liabilities is recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities 
are derecognised and through the amortisation process.



annual report 2017
63

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)	
	
2.18	 Financial Liabilities (Cont’d)

2.18.2	Derecognition of financial liabilities	

	 A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified in the contract is 
extinguished. When an existing financial liability is exchanged with the same lender on substantially 
different terms or the terms of an existing liability is substantially modified, they are accounted for 
as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. 
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability extinguished or transferred to 
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities 
assumed is recognised in profit or loss.

2.19	 Offsetting Financial Instruments

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset 
and intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.20	 Financial Guarantee Contracts

	 A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to 
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because specified debtor fails to make payment when due in 
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

	 Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, net of transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial guarantee contracts are amortised in profit or loss 
using the straight-line method over the contractual period or, when there is no specified contractual 
period, recognised in profit or loss upon discharge of the guarantee. When settlement of a financial 
guarantee contract becomes probable, an estimate of the obligation is made in accordance with MFRS 
137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. If the carrying amount of the financial 
guarantee is lower than the obligation estimated, the carrying value is adjusted to the obligation amount 
and accounted for as a provision.

2.21	 Derivative Financial Instruments

	 The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward 
contracts to manage its exposure to foreign currency risks.

	 Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contract is entered and are 
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or 
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

	 A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset and derivative with a negative 
fair value is recognised as a financial liability. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-
current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected 
to be realised or settled within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current 
liabilities.

	 The Group has not designated any derivatives as hedging instruments.

	 Embedded derivatives

	 Derivatives embedded in financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives 
when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host 
contracts are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.	
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2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.22	 Employee Benefits

2.22.1	Short-term employee benefits

	 Wages, salaries and social security contributions, paid annual and sick leave, bonuses and non-
monetary benefits are recognised as an expense in profit or loss or included in the costs of assets, 
where applicable, in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of 
the Group.

2.22.2	Post-employment benefits

(a)	 Defined contribution plans

	 The Group provides post-employment benefits by way of contribution to defined contribution 
plans operated by the relevant authorities at the prescribed rates.

	 Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefits plans under which the Group 
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all 
employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

	 The Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense 
in profit or loss in the period to which the contributions relate or included in the costs of 
assets, where applicable.

(b)	 Defined benefit plans

	 Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution 
plans and under which the pension benefits payable to employees are usually determined 
by reference to employee’s earning and/or length of service.

	 The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit final salary plan for eligible 
employees.	

	 The liability recognised in the statement of financial position is the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation at the reporting date together with adjustments for actuarial 
gains or losses and past service cost. The present value of the defined benefit obligation 
is determined on an annual basis by independent qualified actuaries using the Projected 
Unit Credit Method.

	 Actuarial gains or losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they 
arise and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

	 Past service cost is the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting 
from a plan amendment or curtailment. Past service cost is recognised as an expense in 
profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment or curtailment.
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2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.22	 Employee Benefits (Cont’d)

2.22.3	Termination benefits

	 Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal 
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for those 
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of (i) when the Group can 
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (ii) when the Group recognises costs for a 
restructuring.

	 Termination benefits falling over more than twelve (12) months after the end of the reporting period 
are discounted to present value.

2.23	 Provisions

	 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal and constructive obligation as a result 
of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of provision is measured at the present 
value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.  Where 
discounting is used, the increase in the amount of a provision due to passage of time is recognised as 
finance cost. 

2.24	 Income Taxes

	 Tax expense is the aggregate amount of current and deferred taxes. Current and deferred taxes are 
recognised as income or expense in profit or loss except to the extent that the taxes relate to items 
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity or a business 
combination.

	 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year and is calculated using tax 
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

	 Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences at end of the reporting 
period between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the amounts 
attributed to those assets and liabilities for taxation purposes.

	 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are 
recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unabsorbed tax losses and unused tax credits 
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the assets can 
be utilised.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realised.

	 Tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period are used to determine 
deferred tax.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.		
					   



66
TAS OFFSHORE BERHAD (Company No. 810179-T)

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
	

2.25	 Borrowing Costs					   
	

	 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, production or preparation 
of qualifying assets until they are ready for their intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost 
of those assets. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred.

	 Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure 
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowings costs eligible for capitalisation.

2.26	 Hire purchase and finance lease arrangements and operating lease

	 A lease is recognised as a finance lease if it transfers substantially to the Group all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of the leased assets.  All other leases are classified as operating lease.

	 Assets acquired under hire-purchase arrangements are recognised and measured in a similar manner 
as finance leases.

(i)    	 Assets acquired under hire-purchase and finance lease arrangements

	 Assets acquired under hire-purchase and finance lease arrangements are stated at the amounts 
equal at the inception of the arrangement to the lower of the fair values and the present values 
of the minimum hire-purchase of lease payments.

	 The corresponding obligations are taken up as hire-purchase or finance lease liabilities.  Hire-
purchase or lease payments are apportioned between the outstanding liabilities and finance 
charges which are dealt with through the profit or loss over the period of the hire-purchase/lease 
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liabilities 
for each year.

	 The depreciation policy of property, plant and equipment acquired under hire-purchase and finance 
lease arrangements are consistent with the Group and the Company’s depreciation policy as set 
out in Note 2.9 above.

(ii) 	 Operating lease

	 Operating lease payments are recognised as expenses in the profit or loss on a straight line basis 
over the year of the relevant leases.

2.27	 Revenue

	 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods 
or rendering of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is recognised when 
it can be measured reliably and to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated 
to the transactions will flow to the Group. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met 
before revenue is recognised :-
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2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)		
	
2.27	 Revenue (Cont’d)

(a)	 Ship construction contract income

	 Revenue from construction contracts is recognised using the percentage of completion method 
as described in Note 2.12.1.

	 Revenue relating to sale of completed vessels is recognised upon the transfer of significant risks 
and rewards of ownership to the buyer of the goods, net of discounts and returns. Revenue is 
not recognised to the extent where there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the 
consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

(b)	 Vessel repair and service income 

	 Revenue from provision of services is recognised upon rendering of services.

(c)	 Interest income

	 Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

(d)	 Dividend income

	 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment has been established.

2.28	 Earnings Per Share

	 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the financial year attributable to 
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the financial year, net of treasury shares held. Diluted earnings per share is determined by 
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding, net of treasury shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary 
shares.

2.29	 Operating Segments

	 An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it 
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with 
other components of the Group. Operating segment results are reviewed by the chief operating decision 
maker i.e. the Group Managing Director who makes decision about resources to be allocated to the 
segments and to assess their performance and for which discrete financial information is available.	
	

2.30	 Fair Value Measurements

	 Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for share-based payment and leasing transactions, is the price 
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The measurement assumes that the transaction to sell 
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal 
market, in the most advantageous market. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement takes 
into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and 
best use.						    
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2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)	

2.30	 Fair Value Measurements (Cont’d)

	 When measuring fair value, the Group maximises the use of relevant observable inputs and minimises 
the use of unobservable inputs. Fair value measurements are categorised into different levels in a fair 
value hierarchy based on the input used in the valuation technique as follows :-

	 Level 1 :		Q uoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
			 

	 Level 2 :		 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 	observable for the 		
	 asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); 	and	
		

	 Level 3 :		 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
		  (unobservable inputs).	

	 The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the date of the event or 
change in circumstances that caused the transfers.			 
	

	
3.	 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards requires 
management to exercise their judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and 
which may have significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.  It also requires the 
use of accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results reported 
for the reporting period and that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Although these judgements and estimates are 
based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may differ. 

	 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

(a)	 Significant judgements made in the process of applying accounting policies

	 In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, the 
management is of the opinion that any instances of application of judgement are not expected to have 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, apart from those involving 
estimations which are dealt with below.

(b)	 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

	 The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(i)	 Recognition of revenue and costs from shipbuilding construction contracts	

	 The Group recognises shipbuilding construction contract revenue and costs in the profit or loss 
by using the stage of completion method. The stage of completion is determined by reference to 
the surveys of work performed or to the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed 
to-date bear to the estimated total contract costs, where appropriate.			 
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3.	 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONT’D)

(b)	 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(i)	 Recognition of revenue and costs from shipbuilding construction contracts (Cont’d)

	 Significant judgement is required in determining the percentage of completion, the extent of the 
contract costs incurred, the estimated total contract revenue and costs, as well as the recoverability 
of amount due from customers. Total contract revenue includes an estimation of the amount 
of variation works that are recoverable from customers. In making the judgement, the Group 
evaluates based on past experience of the management on similar contract work undertaken by 
the Group and the expertise of specialists.

	 As at 31 May 2017, the Group had several vessels that were under construction for customers 
or had been completed and were awaiting delivery to the customers. Due to the downturn in oil 
and gas industry, certain customers had requested for deferral of delivery dates of the vessels. 
The management assesses each construction contract individually to ensure that the recognition 
of revenue and profit is appropriate and the amount due from such customers is recoverable. 
Significant judgement is required in determining and assessing whether the Group’s customers 
would be able to fulfill their contractual obligations and take delivery of the vessels. The amount due 
from contract customers as at 31 May 2017 where delivery dates have been deferred amounted 
to RM13,732,443 (2016 : RM7,529,537).

(ii)	 Accruals for costs in relation to shipbuilding contract works

	 The Group engages shipbuilders in China to undertake the construction of its offshore support 
vessels. Progress billings for the construction of the offshore support vessels are recognised by 
the Group as and when issued by the shipbuilders. In addition, costs are further accrued based 
on the progressive work performed by the shipbuilders as at reporting date pending billings to 
be rendered by the shipbuilders.

	 Accruals for costs are computed based on the contract prices of the vessels multiplied by their 
respective percentages of work completed as recorded in the construction progress reports 
issued by the shipbuilders and which have been verified by the Group’s management. Significant 
judgement is required in assessing the reliability of the percentages of work completed which 
were estimated by the shipbuilders. The cumulative costs accrued as at 31 May 2017 amounted 
to RM312,988,654 (2016 : RM291,780,796).

(iii)	 Estimation of net realisable values of inventories

	 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The net realisable values 
are assessed based on the management’s best estimate of the latest selling prices after taking 
into consideration of the economic condition relevant to the industry and/or pricing of similar 
assets transacted by the Group and other industry players subsequent to the reporting period. 
Where appropriate, the Group engages independent valuers to assess the net realisable values 
of its inventories. However, factors such as demand levels, technological advances and pricing 
competition may cause changes to the original estimate and which will impact the carrying 
amount of inventories. The carrying amount of the Group’s inventories as at 31 May 2017 was 
approximately RM474,062,132 (2016 : RM407,972,445).	

(iv)	 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

	 The cost of plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful 
lives.  Management estimates the useful lives of these plant and equipment to be within 5 to 10 
years.  These are common life expectancies applied in the vessels construction and transportation 
industry.  Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could impact 
the economic useful lives and residual values of the property, plant and equipment, therefore the 
future depreciation charges could be revised.
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3.	 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONT’D)

(b)	 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(v)	 Impairment of property, plant and equipment

	 The Group assesses impairment of property, plant and equipment when the events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be recoverable.  In 
assessing such impairment, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated using the latest 
available fair value after taking into account the costs to sell or expected value in use of the 
relevant assets.

(vi)	 Impairment losses on trade receivables

	 The Group makes an allowance for impairment losses based on assessment of the recoverability 
of receivables.  Allowances are applied to receivables where events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. In assessing the extent of irrecoverable 
debts, the management has given due consideration to all pertinent information relating to the 
ability of debtors to settle debts.  Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, 
such difference will impact the carrying value of the receivables.

(vii)	 Deferred tax assets

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it 
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible differences can be 
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax 
assets that can be recognised based upon the likely timing and the availability of future taxable 
profits. The unrecognised deductible temporary differences are disclosed in Note 17(b) and 
the unrecognised deferred tax assets in connection thereto amounted to RM2,999,979 (2016 : 
RM1,833,690).
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

4.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)                             		
	

	 Company	 Motor vehicle	
					     2017	 2016
					      RM 	  RM 
	 Cost						    

At beginning and at end of year				    428,470 	  428,470 
					   
	
	 Accumulated depreciation				  
	 Balance at beginning of year				     428,469 	  428,469 
	 Charge for the year 				     –   	  –  

	
	 Balance at end of year				     428,469 	  428,469 
						    
	
	 Net book value as at 31 May	 			    1 	  1 

(a)	 Depreciation is charged to the profit or loss under the following line items :-			 
			 

		  Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			   RM	 RM	 RM	  RM 
					   

	 Administrative expenses		   227,412 	  314,317 	 –   	 –   
	 Cost of sales		   1,548,373 	  1,522,124 	 –   	 –   

			 
			    1,775,785 	  1,836,441 	 –   	 – 

  
(b)		 Property, plant and equipment include the following assets acquired under hire-purchase arrangements :-
				  

		  Net book value
 		  Group 
					     2017	 2016
					      RM 	  RM 
						    

	 Motor vehicles				     359,196 	  478,929 

						    
	

5.	 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES                          			 
	

 		  Company 
					     2017	 2016
					     RM	  RM 

	
	U nquoted shares, at cost				     80,102,754 	  80,102,752 
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

5.	 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)                                 				  
	
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows :-			 

	
				    Effective equity
Name of		  Country of	 interest (%)	
companies	 Principal activities	 incorporation	 2017	 2016
						    
Tuong Aik		  Shipbuilding and provision of	 Malaysia	 100	 100
  Shipyard		    ship repairs and maintenance			 
  Sdn. Bhd. *		    services				  

				  
TA Ventures		  Shipbuilding outside Malaysia	 Malaysia	 100	 100
  (L) Ltd. 						    

					   
Western		  Property investment and property	 Malaysia	 100	 100
  Realty 		    development activities - dormant			 
  Sdn. Bhd. *		    during the financial year				  

					   
TAS Epic 		  Agricultural development activities -	 Malaysia	 100	 –
  Sdn. Bhd. *		    dormant during the financial year				  

				  
*	 Not audited by Folks DFK & Co.

	 On 1 July 2016, the Company acquired the entire equity interest in TAS Epic Sdn. Bhd. comprising 2 ordinary 
shares for a total cash consideration of RM2. The acquisition has not resulted in any significant financial 
impact to the Group’s financial statements for the current financial year.		
	

	
6.	 OTHER INVESTMENTS  

			   Group and Company
				    2017	 2016
				    RM	 RM
	 Available-for-sale financial assets
	U nit trust, at fair value				    26,388,062 	  26,013,416 

7.	 INVENTORIES                              					   
			 

			   Group
					     2017	 2016
				    RM	 RM
	
	 Raw materials and consumable stores			    12,201,355 	  19,665,469 
	 Work-in-progress - vessels under construction			    267,451,313 	  201,867,536 
	 Completed vessels				     194,104,450	  186,133,640 
	 Goods-in-transit				     305,014 	  305,800 
							     

				     474,062,132 	  407,972,445 
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

7.	 INVENTORIES (CONT’D)                              					   
	

	 Included in the above balances are the following inventories carried at their respective net realisable values :-

		  Group
					     2017	 2016
					     RM	 RM
		 Work-in-progress - vessels under construction			    184,491,522 	 –   
	 Completed vessels				     86,753,202 	 –   
							     

				     271,244,724 	  –  
					   
	
	 During the financial year, a write down in value of inventories amounted to RM7,389,360 (2016 : NIL) has been 

recognised in the profit or loss.	

	
8.	 AMOUNT DUE FROM CONTRACT CUSTOMERS                           

		  Group
					     2017	 2016
				    RM	 RM
						    
	 Contract costs incurred to-date				    36,241,543 	  69,691,913 
	 Attributable profits less recognised losses			    6,368,237 	  5,823,984 
							     

				     42,609,780 	  75,515,897 
	 Progress billings				     (13,170,544)	  (18,772,329)
						    
	 Amount due from contract customers			    29,439,236 	  56,743,568 

	
9.	 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES                               				  

	
		  Group	 Company	
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
	
	 Trade receivables		   12,683,875 	  13,193,680 	 –   	 – 
	 Other receivables, deposits				  
	   and prepayments		   23,487,849 	  16,996,780 	  6,006 	  4,862 
				  
 			   36,171,724 	  30,190,460 	  6,006 	  4,862 
	

(a)	 The normal credit period of trade receivables relating to ship repairing is 60 days (2016 : 60 days). In 
respect of shipbuilding contracts, the debts arising are to be settled within a period of 7 to 15 days (2016 
: 7 to 15 days) from the date the billings are rendered. Other credit terms are assessed and approved 
on a case-by-case basis.					   
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

9.	 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)                              				  
	
(b)	 Ageing analysis

	 The ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period is as follows :-		
	

	 Group		
					     Individual 		

			   Gross	  impairment 	  Net 
			   RM 	  RM 	  RM 

	 2017				    		
				  

	 Not past due			    626,287 	 –   	  626,287 
	 0 to 30 days past due			    150,043 	  –  	  150,043 
	 31 to 120 days past due			    92,277 	 –  	  92,277 
		 More than 120 days past due		   18,079,796 	  (6,264,528)	  11,815,268 
							     

			    18,948,403 	  (6,264,528)	  12,683,875 
							     

				  
					      Individual 
				    Gross	  impairment 	  Net 
				     RM 	  RM 	  RM 
	 2016					     	

				  
	 Not past due			    701,648 	  –   	  701,648 
	 0 to 30 days past due			    253,761 	  –   	  253,761 
	 31 to 120 days past due			   4,466,231 	 –   	  4,466,231 
		 More than 120 days past due		   13,267,557 	  (5,495,517)	  7,772,040 

						    
 			   18,689,197	  (5,495,517)	  13,193,680 

	 Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired comprised those customers who have 
defaulted on their payments and are considered to have financial difficulties in repaying their debts.

	 As at 31 May 2017, the Group has trade receivables amounting to RM12,057,588 (2016 : RM12,492,032) 
that are past due but not impaired. They are considered to be creditworthy and are able to settle their 
debts. These balances are not secured except for debts relating to shipbuilding construction contracts 
where the Group will suspend delivery of vessels until the full settlement of the contracted sales value.

	 During the financial year, the Group did not renegotiate the terms of any trade receivables.

(c)	 The movements of allowance for impairment losses on trade receivables during the financial year are 
as follows :-	

			   Group
					     2017	 2016

				    RM	 RM
					   
		 Balance at beginning of year			    5,495,517 	 –   
		 Impairment loss recognised during the year			    753,927 	  5,495,517 
		 Effect of changes in exchange rates			    15,084 	 –   
					   
	 Balance at end of year				     6,264,528 	  5,495,517 
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

9.	 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)  

(d)	 The Group’s trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies :-

				  
	 Group
					     2017	 2016
					     RM	 RM
						    
	 Ringgit Malaysia				     1,527,745 	  1,171,429 
	U nited States Dollar				     918,652 	  1,583,750 
	 Singapore Dollar				     10,237,478 	  10,438,501 
					   
					      12,683,875 	  13,193,680 

				  
							     

	
(e)	 Other receivables, deposits and prepayments are analysed as follows :-	

					   
	 Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
		 Deposits paid to shipbuilding				  
		   suppliers and contractors				  
	   (Note 9(e)(i))		   23,209,531 	  16,740,185 	 –   	 –   
	 Advances to shipbuilding				  
		   contractors (Note 9(e)(ii))	 –   	  283 	 –   	 –  
	 Sundry deposits		   12,771 	  12,586 	  2,000 	  2,000 
	 Other receivables		
	   (Note 9(e)(iii))		   12,834,653 	  12,331,157 	 –  	 –  
				  
			    36,056,955 	  29,084,211 	  2,000 	  2,000 
		 Less : Impairment loss on 
	           other receivables		   (12,834,653)	  (12,331,157)	 –   	 – 
				  
			    23,222,302 	  16,753,054 	  2,000 	  2,000 
	 Goods and services tax			 
	   recoverable		   136,670 	  174,592 	 – 	 –  
	 Prepayments		   128,877 	  69,134 	  4,006 	  2,862 
					   
			    23,487,849 	  16,996,780 	  6,006 	  4,862 
		

(i)	 Deposits paid to shipbuilding suppliers and contractors

	 These comprise deposits paid to suppliers for purchase of materials and equipment and initial 
payments paid to contractors in accordance with the terms of shipbuilding contracts.

	 Such deposits will be used to offset against the costs of materials or contract services provided 
by the suppliers or contractors.

(ii)	 Advances to shipbuilding contractors	

	 These advances are made to shipbuilding contractors for the purpose of procurement of materials 
and equipment under the terms of the shipbuilding contracts. The amounts are unsecured, interest 
free and will be progressively deducted from the billings or claims made by the shipbuilding 
contractors over the duration of the contracts.				  
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

9.	 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D) 

(e)	 Other receivables, deposits and prepayment are analysed as follows (Cont’d) :- 

(iii)	 Other receivables

	 Other receivables as at 31 May 2017 amounting to RM12,834,653 (2016 : RM12,331,157) which 
is equivalent to USD2,997,000 (2016 : USD2,997,000) represent progress payments made by a 
subsidiary, namely TA Ventures (L) Ltd. (“TAV”) to a shipbuilding contractor (“the shipbuilder”) in 
accordance with the terms of a shipbuilding agreement. The amount paid has been fully impaired in 
the financial year 2016 due to the ongoing dispute arising from the termination of the shipbuilding 
agreement by TAV on the ground of late delivery of vessel by the shipbuilder and which has not 
been resolved to-date.

(f)	 The movements of allowance for impairment losses on other receivables during the financial year are 
as follows :-

			   Group
					     2017	 2016

				    RM	 RM
					   
		 Balance at beginning of year			    12,331,157 	 –   
		 Impairment loss recognised during the year			   –   	  11,625,363 
		 Effects of changes in exchange rates			    503,496 	  705,794 
					   
	 Balance at end of year				     12,834,653 	  12,331,157 

	

(g)	 Other receivables, deposits and prepayments of the Group and of the Company are denominated in 
the following currencies :-	

		  Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
	
	 Ringgit Malaysia		   475,813 	  456,578 	  6,006 	  4,862 
	U nited States Dollar		   22,062,475 	  16,173,363 	 – 	 –   
	 Singapore Dollar		   355,411 	  253,801 	  –  	 –   
	 Japanese Yen		   594,150 	  76,452 	  –  	 –   
	 Euro		  –   	  36,586 	 –	 –   
	
			    23,487,849 	  16,996,780 	  6,006 	  4,862 

		

10.	 AMOUNT DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES                               				  
		

			   Company
					     2017	 2016
					     RM	 RM
	
Interest bearing				     9,950,000 	  9,050,000 
Non-interest bearing				     7,852,986 	  7,418,767 

						    
				     17,802,986 	  16,468,767 
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

10.	 AMOUNT DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

	 The amounts due from subsidiaries are non-trade in nature, unsecured, repayable on demand and settlement 
is expected to be in cash.

	
	 Interest charged on interest bearing amount due from subsidiaries during the financial year was calculated 

at rates ranging from 5.52% to 7.85% (2016 : 6.10% to 7.85%) per annum. 			 
						    
					   

11.	 CASH AND BANK BALANCES                          					   
	

		  Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
					   
	 Cash in hand		  18,671 	  22,942 	  2,833 	  651 
	 Cash at banks		   3,703,351 	  26,375,304 	  189,651 	  207,528 
				  
	  		  3,722,022 	  26,398,246 	  192,484 	  208,179 
		

	 The Group’s and the Company’s cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies :-	
				  
	 Group	 Company

			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
					   
	 Ringgit Malaysia		   243,316 	  7,362,132 	  192,484 	  208,179 
	U nited States Dollar		   2,221,218 	  18,632,576 	 –   	 – 
	 Singapore Dollar		   1,247,897 	  385,672 	 –   	 –  
	 Chinese Yuan Renminbi		   6,847 	  15,166 	 –   	 –   
	 Euro		   2,744 	  2,700 	 –  	 –  
					   
			    3,722,022 	  26,398,246 	  192,484 	  208,179 
		
			 
	 The effective interest rate of the Group’s and the Company’s cash in current accounts amounting to RM20,089 

as at the end of the reporting period (2016 : Group - RM7,920,840 and Company - RM37,972) is 2% (2016 : 
2%) per annum.

					   
12.	 SHARE CAPITAL                                   					   

	 Group and Company 
		  Number of shares	 Amount (RM)
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
					   

(a)	 Authorised (Note 12(c))		   –   	  200,000,000 	  –  	  100,000,000 
		

(b)	 Issued and fully paid-up			 
	
	 Balance at beginning of year	  180,002,000 	  180,002,000 	  90,001,000 	  90,001,000 
		 Effect of transition to no par 
	   value shares on 31 January
	   2017 (Note 12(c))		   –   	  –   	  27,639,472 	  –   
	
	 Balance at end of year		   180,002,000 	  180,002,000 	  117,640,472 	  90,001,000 
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

12.	 SHARE CAPITAL (CONT’D)

(c)	 The new Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”) which became effective from 31 January 2017 removed 
the concept of authorised share capital and par value of share capital. Section 74 of the Act provides 
that all shares issued before or upon commencement of the Act shall have no par or nominal value. 
In accordance with the transitional provision under Section 618(2) of the Act, any amount outstanding 
in the credit of the share premium account shall become part of the share capital. Notwithstanding, 
the share premium amount can be utilised for purposes set out in the Section 618(3) within 24 months 
upon commencement of the Act. Pursuant to the aforesaid, the share premium of RM27,639,472 was 
transferred to the share capital account and formed part of the share capital of the Company upon 
commencement of the Act on 31 January 2017. The change to no par value shares has no effect on 
the number of ordinary shares in issue of the Company.

13.	 TREASURY SHARES     

	 The shareholders of the Company, by an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on 
28 September 2016, had renewed the approval granted to the Company to buy back its own shares up to 
10% of the total issued and paid-up share capital of the Company.

	 The balance comprised the cost of treasury shares acquired as at end of the reporting period. 
	

	 The movements in treasury shares are as follows :-				  
	

				    Number of		  Average cost 
				    treasury	 Cost	  per share
				    shares	 RM	 RM
					   
	 Balance at 1 June 2015			    4,215,400 	  1,661,467  	 0.394 
	 Repurchased during the financial year		   190,000 	  115,298 	  0.607 
					   
	 Balance at 31 May 2016 / 1 June 2016		   4,405,400 	  1,776,765 	  0.403 
	 Repurchased during the financial year		   –  	  –   	  –   
					   
	 Balance at 31 May 2017			    4,405,400 	  1,776,765 	  0.403 

	 The shares repurchased are being held as treasury shares in accordance with Section 127(4)(b) of the 
Companies Act 2016.  None of the treasury shares were sold or cancelled during the financial year.

	 The number of shares in issue after the share buy-back is 175,596,600 (2016 : 175,596,600) ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

14.	 RESERVES                                      	

		  Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
	 Distributable				  
	 Retained profits		   34,593,787 	  48,628,504 	  6,626,857 	  5,810,776 

	
	 Non-distributable					   
	 Share premium (Note 12(c))		  –  	  27,639,472 	 –   	  27,639,472 
	 Fair value adjustment reserve		   1,852,581 	  983,196 	  1,852,581 	  983,196 
	 Foreign currency translation reserve	  8,405,876 	  7,697,774 	 –   	 –   
		
			    10,258,457 	  36,320,442 	  1,852,581 	  28,622,668 
					   
 		  44,852,244 	  84,948,946 	  8,479,438 	  34,433,444 
		

(a)	 Fair value adjustment reserve				  
	

			   Group and Company 
					     2017	 2016
					     RM	 RM
						    

		 Balance at beginning of year			   983,196 	  633,375 
		 Gain on fair value changes of available-for-sale (“AFS”)				  

  financial assets				     1,054,675 	  505,768 
		 Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of AFS financial				  

  assets				     (185,290)	  (155,947)
	
	 Balance at end of year				    1,852,581 	  983,196 

(b)	 Foreign currency translation reserve					   
		

			   Group
					     2017	 2016

				    RM	 RM
			 
		 Balance at beginning of year			   7,697,774 	  4,138,326 
		 Foreign currency translation gain			   708,102 	  3,559,448 
	
	 Balance at end of year				     8,405,876 	  7,697,774 
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

15.	 HIRE-PURCHASE PAYABLE                                   				  
				  
		  Group
					     2017	 2016
					     RM	 RM

	 Future minimum payments :
	  - within 1 year				    142,896 	  142,896 
	  - between 2 to 5 years				    23,808 	  166,704 
				  
					      166,704 	  309,600 
	 Future finance charges				     (4,522)	  (15,115)
					   
	 Present value of hire-purchase				     162,182 	  294,485 
					   
	
	 Payable as follows :				  
	  - within 1 year (included under current liabilities)			   138,503 	  132,303 
	  - between 2 to 5 years (included under non-current liabilities)		   23,679 	  162,182 
							     

				     162,182 	  294,485 
		

	 The hire-purchase payable bears an effective interest rate at 4.55% (2016 : 4.55%) per annum.		
						    
					   

16.	 RETIREMENT BENEFITS              					   
			 

		  Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
	 Present value of unfunded				  
	   defined benefit obligations		   1,005,644 	  844,962 	  100,565 	  84,497 

	 The Company implements an unfunded defined benefit plan for eligible Directors and an employee. The 
benefits are payable upon attaining normal retirement age of between 60 to 70 years old, death, or ill health. 
The actuarial valuation was performed on 31 May 2014.

	
	 The movements in the present value of employee benefits during the financial year are as follows :-		

	
		  Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
				  
	 Balance at beginning of year		   844,962 	  695,512 	  84,497 	  69,552 
					   
	 Recognised in profit or loss				  
	 Current service costs		   119,628 	  115,280 	  11,963 	  11,528 
	 Interest on obligation		   41,054 	  34,170 	  4,105 	  3,417 
							     

		   160,682 	  149,450 	  16,068 	  14,945 
		
	 Balance at end of year		   1,005,644 	  844,962 	  100,565 	  84,497 

	 The amount recognised to the profit or loss has been included in administrative expenses.		
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

16.	 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONT’D)             					   
	

	 The significant actuarial assumptions used to determine the present value of the defined benefit obligations 
are as follows :-						    
					   

		  Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
					   
	 Discount rate		  5.00%	 5.00%	 5.00%	 5.00%
	 Future average salary increases		 4.00%	 4.00%	 4.00%	 4.00%
	

	 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the significant actuarial assumptions is shown 
below.

		  Increase/(Decrease) in defined benefit obligations
		  2017	 2016
			   Group	 Company	 Group	 Company
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
	
	 Discount rate increases by 1%		   (57,078)	  (5,708)	  (54,809)	  (5,481)
	 Discount rate decreases by 1 %		  68,030 	  6,803 	  65,066 	  6,507 
	 Future average salary growth 				  
	   increases by 1%		   109,390 	  10,939 	  91,586 	  9,159 
	 Future average salary growth 					   
	   decreases by 1%		   (93,356)	  (9,336)	  (78,228)	  (7,823)
	

		 The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions 
constant.					   
	

					   
17.	 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)                               				  

				  
		  Group	 Company
		  2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
	
	 Balance at beginning of year		   (2,179,737)	  (3,026,704)	  20,279 	  17,388 
	 Recognised in profit or loss		   50,289 	  724,724 	  3,856 	  3,587 
	 Effects of change in statutory			 
	   tax rate		   –   	  122,243 	  –  	  (696)
		
	 Balance at end of year		   (2,129,448)	  (2,179,737)	  24,135 	  20,279 
					   
	
	 Presented after appropriate				  
	   offsetting as follows :-				  
	 Deferred tax assets		   24,135 	  20,279 	  24,135 	  20,279 
	 Deferred tax liabilities		   (2,153,583)	  (2,200,016)	  –   	  –   

			    (2,129,448)	  (2,179,737)	  24,135 	  20,279 
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

17.	 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (CONT’D)

(a)	 The components and movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities during the financial year prior to 
offsetting of balances are as follows :-					   
	

	 Group						    
				     Recognised 		
			    As at 	  in profit  	  As at 

				     01.06.2016 	 or loss	  31.05.2017 
	 2017			    RM 	  RM 	  RM 
					   
	 Deferred tax liabilities 			 
		 Property, plant and equipment		   (3,285,199)	  14,668	  (3,270,531)
		 Other taxable temporary differences		   (155,513)	  155,513 	  –  
							     

			    (3,440,712)	  170,181 	  (3,270,531)
					   
	
	 Deferred tax assets 
	 Retirement benefits			   202,791 	  38,563 	  241,354 
		 Other deductible temporary differences		   1,058,184 	  (158,455)	  899,729 
				  
				     1,260,975 	  (119,892)	  1,141,083
	
							     

				     Effects of 		
			    Recognised 	  change in 

			    As at 	  in profit  	 statutory	  As at 
			    01.06.2015 	 or loss	 tax rate	  31.05.2016 
	 2016		   RM 	  RM 	  RM 	  RM 
					   
	 Deferred tax liabilities  			 
		 Property, plant and equipment	  (3,414,162)	  (8,779)	  137,742 	  (3,285,199)
	 Other taxable temporary		
	   differences		  –   	  (155,513)	  –   	  (155,513)
			 
			    (3,414,162)	  (164,292)	  137,742 	  (3,440,712)

	
	
	 Deferred tax assets  			 
	 Retirement benefits		   173,878 	  35,869 	  (6,956)	  202,791 
		U nutilised capital allowances	  46,424 	  (44,567)	  (1,857)	 –   
		 Other deductible temporary 				  
	   differences		   167,156 	  897,714 	  (6,686)	  1,058,184 

			    387,458 	  889,016 	  (15,499)	  1,260,975 
							     

					   
	 Company						    

				    Recognised 		
			    As at 	  in profit  	  As at 

				     01.06.2016 	 or loss	  31.05.2017 
	 2017			    RM 	  RM 	  RM 
				  
	 Deferred tax assets  			 
	 Retirement benefits			    20,279 	  3,856 	  24,135 
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17.	 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (CONT’D)         

(a)	 The components and movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities during the financial year prior to 
offsetting of balances are as follows :- 

				  
	 Company (Cont’d)	
					      Effects of 		

			    Recognised 	  change in 
		   As at 	  in profit  	 statutory	  As at 
		  01.06.2015 	 or loss	 tax rate	  31.05.2016 

	 2016		   RM 	  RM 	  RM 	  RM 
							     

					   
	 Deferred tax assets 			 
	 Retirement benefits		   17,388 	  3,587 	  (696)	  20,279 

(b)	 As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has an amount of RM12,499,913 (2016 : RM7,640,375) 
of other deductible temporary differences for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised in 
the financial statements.	

18.	 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES                                 				  
	

		  Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

	 Trade payables		   362,738,605 	  334,011,143 	 –   	 –   
	 Other payables and accruals		   12,607,052 	  30,394,852 	  202,070 	  195,000 
							     

		   375,345,657 	  364,405,995 	  202,070 	  195,000 
		

(a)	 The Group has engaged shipbuilders in China for the construction of its offshore support vessels. In 
addition to the progress billings made by the shipbuilders for the construction of the offshore support 
vessels, costs are further accrued by the Group based on the progressive work performed pending 
billings to be rendered by the shipbuilders. The costs accrued and pending billings which are included 
in trade payables as at 31 May 2017 amounted to RM312,988,654 (2016 : RM291,780,796).	
	

(b)	 The Group’s trade payables are denominated in the following currencies :-			 
				  

			   Group
			   		  2017	 2016

					     RM	 RM	
				  

	 Ringgit Malaysia				     4,166,682 	  4,851,600 
	U nited States Dollar				     357,825,719 	  329,063,359 
	 Singapore Dollar				     665,711 	  96,184 
	 Euro				     80,493 	  –   
							     

		   		  362,738,605 	  334,011,143 
	

(c)	 The normal credit period of trade payables granted to the Group ranges from 7 to 90 days (2016 : 7 to 
90 days).						    
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18.	 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONT’D)                               			 
	
(d)	 Other payables and accruals consist of the following :-			 

	
		  Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
						    

	 Other payables		   11,911,716 	  29,538,361 	  7,070 	   –   
	 Deposit received		    –   	  258,550 	  –   	   –	

Accruals		   670,835 	  567,514 	  195,000 	  195,000 
	 Goods and services tax				  
	   payable		   24,501 	  30,427 	   –  	  –  
	
			    12,607,052 	  30,394,852 	  202,070 	  195,000 
	
	
			 
	 Other payables

	 In 2016, a customer of a subsidiary, namely TA Ventures (L) Ltd. (“TAV”) initiated an action to terminate 
three (3) vessel sale and purchase agreements due to late delivery of vessels by TAV. On 20 June 
2016, TAV and the customer entered into a Settlement Agreement whereby the customer agreed to 
take delivery of one (1) vessel and to terminate the other two (2) vessel sale and purchase agreements. 
In respect of the terminated agreements, TAV was required to refund the progress payments made 
by the customer amounting USD4,050,000 (approximately RM16,664,000) together with interest of 
USD350,000 (approximately RM1,440,000). These amounts have been fully settled by TAV during the 
current financial year.

		 The termination of the two (2) vessel sale and purchase agreements had resulted in a loss to the Group 
amounting to RM2,749,303 which had been recognised in the previous year’s profit or loss as disclosed 
in Note 23.

(e)	 The other payables and accruals are denominated in the following currencies :-	

		  Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016

		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
	

	 Ringgit Malaysia		   523,888 	  782,100 	  202,070 	  195,000 
	U nited States Dollar		   12,083,164 	  29,612,752 	 –   	 –   
	
			   12,607,052 	  30,394,852 	  202,070 	  195,000 
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19.	 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS                             				  
				  
		  Group

					     2017	 2016
				    RM	 RM
	 Unsecured					   
	 Bank overdrafts				     2,231,159 	  –   
	 Bankers’ acceptance				     5,194,000 	  –   
	 Revolving credits				     45,608,625 	  32,916,000 
						    
				     53,033,784 	  32,916,000 
			 

	 The bank borrowings are denominated in the following currencies :-			 
				  
		  Group

					     2017	 2016
				    RM	 RM

	 Ringgit Malaysia				     7,425,159 	  –   
	U nited States Dollar				     45,608,625 	  32,916,000 
							     

				     53,033,784 	  32,916,000 
				  

	 All the bank borrowings are granted by licensed banks to subsidiaries and are secured by way of a facility 
agreement, a Deed of Assignment of Contract Proceeds and Power of Attorney to cover all shipbuilding 
contracts/agreements financed by the lending banks and a corporate guarantee from the Company.

	 Interest rates charged on the bank borrowings utilised during the financial year are as follows :-

			   Group’s
			    effective interest rate 
					     2017	 2016
					     %	 %
		
	 Bank overdrafts				    7.71	 7.60 - 7.85
	 Revolving credits				    2.70 - 4.22	 2.36 - 5.52
	 Bankers’ acceptance				    4.56	 4.91
	

	
20.	 REVENUE  
					   

	 Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
	
	 Shipbuilding construction contract
	   income		  18,114,752 	  113,325,705 	  -   	  -   
	V essel repairs and service income	  1,611,782 	  1,841,340 	  -   	  -   
	 Income from unit trust funds		   978,204 	  622,211 	  978,204 	  622,211 
							     

		   20,704,738 	  115,789,256 	  978,204 	  622,211 
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21.	 COST OF SALES                                                    				  
				  
		  Group

					     2017	 2016
					     RM	 RM
				  
	 Cost of construction contracts				     20,652,540 	  114,899,000 
	 Cost of service rendered				     883,673	  1,007,791 
					   
					      21,536,213 	  115,906,791 
	

22.	 FINANCE COSTS                         	
						    
			   Group
					     2017	 2016
					     RM	 RM
	 Interest on :-				  
	 Bank overdrafts				     17,059 	  18,836 
	 Bankers’ acceptances and revolving credits			    1,494,544 	  1,231,607 
	 Hire-purchase				     10,594 	  13,565 
							     

				     1,522,197 	  1,264,008 
				  

		 Finance costs are charged to the profit or loss under the following line items :-	
					   

		  Group
					     2017	 2016
					     RM	 RM
			 
	 Cost of sales				     17,520 	  132,933 
	 Administrative expenses				     1,504,677 	  1,131,075 
							     

				     1,522,197 	  1,264,008 
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23.	 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION                                          				  
	

		  Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
	 (Loss)/Profit before taxation is arrived
	   at after charging :-						    

					   
	 Auditors’ remuneration :				  
	 - Annual statutory audit :				  
	   - current year		   98,588 	  95,032 	  30,000 	  30,000 
	 - Non-audit fees		   4,500 	  4,500 	  4,500 	  4,500 
	 Bad debts written off		   11,429 	  476 	  –   	 –    
	 Compensation for termination of
	   vessel sale agreements 		  –   	  1,357,650 	 –    	 –    
	 Defined benefit cost		   160,682 	  149,450 	  16,068 	  14,945 
	 Depreciation of property, plant					   
	   and equipment		   1,775,785 	  1,836,441 	 –    	 –    
	 Deposit forfeited		   76,452 	  170,554 	  –    	 –    
	 Hire of plant and machinery		   600 	  32,660 	  –    	 –  
	 Inventories written off		   1,744 	  9,729 	  –    	 –    
	 Write down in value of inventories	  7,389,360 	 –    	 –    	 –   
	 Impairment loss on :				  
	 - trade receivables		   753,927 	  5,495,517 	 –  	  –   
	 - other receivables		  –    	  11,625,363 	 –    	 –   
	 Land rental		   19,200 	  19,200 	  –    	 –    
	 Loss on termination of vessel sale
	   agreements		  –    	  2,749,303 	 –    	 –    
	 Realised loss on foreign exchange	  3,779 	  2,341 	  –    	  1,325 
	 Rental of premises		   27,710 	  29,868 	 –   	 –    
	 Property, plant and equipment					   
	   written off		  1,668 	  2,933 	 –    	  –    
	 Preliminary expenses		   2,850 	 –    	 –    	  –    
		
				  
	 and crediting :-						    

				  
	 Income from unit trust funds		   978,204 	  622,211 	  978,204 	  622,211 
	 Gain on disposal of property, plant
	   and equipment		   2,641 	  8,253 	 –    	 –   
	 Gain on disposal of available-					   
	   for-sale financial assets		   49,971 	  8,257 	  49,971 	  8,257 
	 Gain on foreign exchange :					   
	 - realised		   296,329 	  4,659,678 	  2,231 	 –    
	 - unrealised		   556,347 	  1,689,333 	  –   	 –    
	 Interest income from :				  
	 - deposits with licensed banks		   46,345 	  35,223 	  1,190 	  3,150
	 - a subsidiary 		  –   	 –   	  633,722 	  699,210 
	 Reversal of expenses over accrued	  7,366 	 –    	 –    	 –   
							     

				  



90
TAS OFFSHORE BERHAD (Company No. 810179-T)

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

24.	 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION                                 				  
	

	 The details of remuneration receivable by Directors of the Group and of the Company during the financial 
year are as follows :-						    
	

		  Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
	 Executive Directors of the				  
	   Company				  
	 Salaries, allowances and bonus		 1,328,040 	  1,499,000 	  132,804 	  149,900 
	 Defined contribution plan -				  
	   Employees Provident Fund		   159,372 	  177,797 	  15,937 	  17,780 
	 Defined benefit cost		   140,884 	  131,037 	  14,088 	  13,104 
	 Other benefits		   39,179 	  34,769 	 –   	 –   
	 Estimated value of benefits-in-kind	  23,225 	  41,350 	  23,225 	  41,350 
		
			    1,690,700 	  1,883,953 	  186,054 	  222,134 
	

	 Non-executive Directors of the				  
	   Company				  
	 Fees		   147,000 	  147,000 	  147,000 	  147,000 
	 Allowances and other benefits		   27,400 	  28,400 	  27,400 	  28,400 
		
			    174,400 	  175,400 	  174,400 	  175,400 
	

	 Executive Directors of the				  
	   subsidiaries				  
	 Salaries, allowances and bonus		  126,816 	  137,424 	 –   	 –   
	 Defined contribution plan -				  
	   Employees Provident Fund		   15,264 	  16,548 	 –   	 –   
	 Other benefits		   8,238 	  7,880 	 –   	 –   
						    
			    150,318 	  161,852 	 –  	 –  
	

	 Non-executive Directors of the				  
	   subsidiaries		
	 Fees		   51,000 	  51,000 	 –   	 –   
	 Allowances and other benefits		   13,091 	  13,637 	  –   	 –   
					   
			    64,091 	  64,637 	 –   	 –   
						    
	
	 Total remuneration		   2,079,509 	  2,285,842 	  360,454 	  397,534 
		



annual report 2017
91

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

25.	 INCOME TAX EXPENSE                                				  
				  
	 Group	 Company

			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
	 Current tax :				  
	 - for the year		   170,088 	  1,472,692 	  101,195 	  106,082 
	 - (over)/under provision in prior year	  (39,658)	  13,822 	  3,847 	  13,822 
						    
			    130,430 	  1,486,514 	  105,042 	  119,904 

	 Deferred tax (income)/expense					   
	   resulting from origination and					   
	   reversal of temporary differences :
	 - Current year		   (50,289)	  (754,110)	  (3,856)	  (3,587)
	 - Under provision in prior year		  –  	  29,386 	 –   	 –  
	 - Effects of change in statutory					   
	     tax rate 		  –  	  (122,243)	 –   	  696 
			 
			    (50,289)	  (846,967)	  (3,856)	  (2,891)
				  
	
	 Total tax expense		   80,141 	  639,547 	  101,186 	  117,013 
	

		 A reconciliation of tax expense applicable to the (loss)/profit before taxation at the statutory tax rate to the 
tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as follows :-

					   
	 Group	 Company

			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
					   
	 (Loss)/Profit before taxation		   (13,954,576)	  (21,220,998)	  917,267 	  632,880 
		
				  
	 Taxation at applicable statutory tax
	   rate of 24% (2016 : 24%)		   (3,349,098)	  (5,093,040)	  220,144 	  151,891 
	
	 Tax effect in respect of :-				  
	 Expenses that are not deductible in
	   determining taxable profit		   278,135 	  419,220 	  45,098 	  46,561 
	 Income not subject to tax		   (370,109)	  (452,069)	  (167,903)	  (95,957)
	 Current year tax losses of a				  
	   subsidiary not eligible for carry					  
	   forward		   299,320 	  501,349 	  –   	  –   
	 Current year deferred tax assets
	   not recognised		   1,166,289 	  1,833,690 	  –  	  –   
	 Effect of differential in tax rates		   –   	  3,509,432 	  –   	  –   
	 Effects of change in statutory tax
	   rate		   2,095,262 	  (122,243)	  –   	  696 
	 (Over)/Under provision in prior year :				  
	 - Current tax		   (39,658)	  13,822 	  3,847 	  13,822 
	 - Deferred tax		   –   	  29,386 	  – 	  –  
					   
	 Total tax expense		   80,141 	  639,547 	  101,186 	  117,013
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26.	 LOSS PER SHARE 

(a) 	 Basic

	 The basic loss per share is calculated on the Group’s loss for the financial year attributable to equity 
holders of the Company of RM14,034,717 (2016 : RM21,860,545) and is based on the weighted number 
of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year of 175,596,600 (2016 : 175,626,079).

(b)	 Diluted

	 Diluted loss per share is not presented as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding 
as at 31 May 2017 (2016 : NIL).					   
	

27.	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE                               				  
	

		  Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
	 Staff costs comprised :-				  
	
	 Salaries, wages and bonuses		   3,380,247 	  3,784,567 	  172,082 	  194,925 
	 Defined contribution plan -				  
	   Employees Provident Fund		   371,677 	  421,440 	  20,774 	  23,542 
	 Defined benefit cost		   160,682 	  149,450 	  16,068 	  14,945 
	 Others		   160,660 	  159,213 	  497 	  372 
						    
			    4,073,266 	  4,514,670 	  209,421 	  233,784 
		

	 The employee benefit expenses have been charged to the profit or loss under the following line items :-	
				  
	 Group	 Company

			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
						    
	 Administrative expenses		   2,878,357 	  3,219,967 	  209,421 	  233,784 
	 Cost of sales		   1,194,909 	  1,294,703 	  -   	  -   
				  
			    4,073,266 	  4,514,670 	  209,421 	  233,784 

	 Included in employee benefits expense are remuneration provided to Executive Directors of the Group and 
of the Company amounting to RM1,817,793 (2016 : RM2,004,455) and RM162,829 (2016 : RM180,784) 
respectively. 						    
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28.	 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS                                 			 
	

	 Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant 
influence over the other party or when both parties are under the common control of another party.

(a)	 Transactions with related parties

		 Transactions  with  companies  in which  certain Directors have substantial interests are as follows :-	
			 

			   Group
					     2017	 2016
					     RM	 RM

	 Expenditure incurred			 
		 Purchase of marine paints			    2,175 	  6,912 
		 Purchase of raw materials			    320 	 – 
	 Rental of slipway				    –   	  27,000 

		

		 Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are as follows :-
					   

		  Company
					     2017	 2016
					     RM	 RM
					   
		 Interest charged to subsidiaries			    633,722 	  699,210 
		

(b)		 Year-end outstanding balances with related parties 

	 As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has no significant outstanding balances with its related 
parties other than the indebtedness between the Company and its subsidiaries as follows :-

					   
		  Company
					     2017	 2016	

				    RM	 RM
					   
		 Amount receivable from subsidiaries			   17,802,986 	  16,468,767 
							     

					   
		 The terms and conditions of the above indebtednesses are disclosed in Note 10.	

	 No expense has been recognised during the financial year in respect of bad and doubtful debts due 
from the subsidiaries.

(c)	 Key management personnel compensation 

	 Key management personnel of the Group comprise persons having authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or indirectly and include 
the Executive and Non-executive Directors.				  
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28.	 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

(c)	 Key management personnel compensation (Cont’d)

	 The remuneration of the Directors and other key management personnel for the financial year are as 
follows :- 

		  Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
	 Directors			 
		 Short-term employee benefits	  1,740,764 	  1,919,110 	  307,204 	  325,300 
		 Post-employment benefits -				  
		   contribution to Employees				  
	   Provident Fund		   174,636 	  194,345 	  15,937 	  17,780 
	 Defined benefit cost	  	 140,884 	  131,037 	  14,088 	  13,104 
		 Estimated value of benefits-	
	   in-kind		   23,225 	  41,350 	  23,225 	  41,350 
							     

		   2,079,509 	  2,285,842 	  360,454 	  397,534 
	

	 Other key management				  
	   personnel			 
		 Short-term employee benefits	  192,623 	  212,855 	  19,262 	  21,286 
		 Post-employment benefits -				  
		   contribution to Employees			 
	   Provident Fund		  23,184 	  25,621 	  2,318	  2,562 
	 Defined benefit cost		   19,798 	  18,413 	  1,980 	  1,841 
					   
			    235,605 	  256,889 	  23,560 	  25,689 
					   
	 Total		   2,315,114 	  2,542,731 	  384,014 	  423,223 
	

	
29.	 SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)	 Operating Segment

	 The Group’s operations comprise mainly of shipbuilding and ship repairing activities which collectively 
are considered as one business segment. Accordingly, the operating revenue and results of this segment 
are reflected in the Group’s profit or loss. The segment assets and liabilities are as presented in the 
Group’s statement of financial position.

(b)	 Geographical Information 

	 In determining geographical segments of the Group, “Revenue” is based on the geographical location 
of customers and “Non-current assets” are based on the geographical location of the assets. The non-
current assets do not include financial instruments and deferred tax assets.			 
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29.	 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONT’D)

(b)	 Geographical Information (cont’d)
		

		  2017	 2016
				    Non-current		  Non-current
			   Revenue	 assets	 Revenue	 assets
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
							     

					   
	 Malaysia		  6,723,417 	  22,065,236 	  19,428,879 	  23,796,141 
	 Indonesia  *		   (3,325,205)	 –   	  7,491,379 	  –   
	 Singapore  *		   2,824,873 	 –   	  (4,277,177)	 –  
	 Saint Vincent Island		   628,389 	 –    	  82,993,125 	 –   
	 Switzerland		   13,853,264 	 –  	 –   	  –  
	 Egypt		  –   	 –   	  10,153,050 	 –    
	
			    20,704,738 	  22,065,236 	  115,789,256 	  23,796,141 

	

*	 Includes a downward effect of RM4,576,834 (2016 : RM5,187,110) on revision in the estimate of 
contract revenue recognised as the outcome of the contracts cannot be reliably ascertained.

(c)	 Major Customers

	 Revenue from transactions with major customers who individually accounted for 10 percent or more 
of the Group’s revenue are summarised below :-

		  	 2017	 2016			 
		  RM	 RM	 Segment		
	

	 Customer A		  13,853,264 	  65,602,800 	 Shipbuilding and ship repairing
	 Customer B		   4,132,031 	  17,390,325 	 Shipbuilding and ship repairing
	 Customer C		  –   	  16,942,708 	 Shipbuilding and ship repairing	

30.	 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES - UNSECURED 

			   Company
					     2017	 2016
					     RM	 RM
	 Corporate guarantees favouring banks for facilities granted
	   to subsidiaries :				  
	 - Facility limit				     154,845,000 	  174,977,000 
	 - Amount utilised				     53,083,784 	  32,966,000 

	 As at the reporting date, no values were placed on the unsecured corporate guarantees provided by the 
Company as the Directors regard the value of the credit enhancement provided by the corporate guarantees 
to be minimal and the likelihood of default to be low.				  
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31.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT   
	
	 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one enterprise and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another enterprise.
	
	 Financial assets of the Group include trade and other receivables, other investments and cash and bank 

balances.
	
	 Financial liabilities of the Group include trade and other payables, hire-purchase payable and bank borrowings.

	 In respect of the Company, financial assets also include amount due from subsidiaries.	

(a)	 Categories of Financial Instruments

	 The Group’s and the Company’s financial instruments are categorised as follows :-

(i)	 Financial assets as per statement of financial position

		  			   2017
						       Available- 	

				    Loans	  for-sale 
				    Carrying	 and 	  financial 
				    amount	 receivables	  assets 
			    Note 	  RM 	  RM 	  RM 
	 Group
	 Other investments		  6	  26,388,062 	 –  	  26,388,062 
	 Trade receivables		  9	  12,683,875 	  12,683,875 	 –   
	 Other receivables #		 9	  23,222,302 	  23,222,302 	 – 
		 Cash and bank balances	 11	  3,722,022 	  3,722,022 	 –   
							     

			    66,016,261 	  39,628,199 	  26,388,062 
	
	
	 Company
	 Other investments		  6	  26,388,062 	 –   	  26,388,062 
	 Other receivables		  9	  2,000 	  2,000 	 –   
	 Amount due from
	   subsidiaries		  10	  17,802,986 	  17,802,986 	 –  
		 Cash and bank balances	 11	  192,484 	  192,484 	  –   
							     

			    44,385,532 	  17,997,470	  26,388,062 
							     

					   
#	 Exclude goods and services tax recoverable and prepayments		
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31.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)                    		
			 
(a)	 Categories of Financial Instruments (Cont’d)	
	

(i)	 Financial assets as per statement of financial position (Cont’d)

					     2016		
					      Available- 

					     Loans	  for-sale 
				    Carrying	 and 	  financial 
				    amount	 receivables	  assets 
			    Note 	  RM 	  RM 	  RM 
	 Group
	 Other investments		  6	  26,013,416 	 –   	  26,013,416 
	 Trade receivables		  9	  13,193,680 	  13,193,680 	  –  
	 Other receivables #		 9	  16,753,054 	  16,753,054 	  –  
		 Cash and bank balances	 11	  26,398,246 	  26,398,246 	  –  
							     

 			   82,358,396 	  56,344,980 	  26,013,416 
	

	 Company
	 Other investments		  6	  26,013,416 	 –   	  26,013,416 
	 Other receivables		  9	  2,000 	  2,000	  –   
	 Amount due from
	   subsidiaries		  10	  16,468,767 	  16,468,767 	  –   
		 Cash and bank balances	 11	  208,179 	  208,179 	  – 
							     

			    42,692,362 	  16,678,946 	  26,013,416 
						    
	

#	 Exclude goods and services tax recoverable and prepayments

(ii)	 Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position	

			   2017
						       Other 
						       financial 
						       liabilities  
						       measured 
					     Carrying	  at amortised 
					     amount	  cost 

			    Note 	  RM 	  RM 
	 Group
	 Trade payables			   18	  362,738,605 	  362,738,605 
	 Other payables *			   18	  12,582,551 	  12,582,551 
		 Hire-purchase payable		  15	  162,182 	  162,182 
	 Bank overdraft			   19	  2,231,159 	  2,231,159 
		 Banker’s acceptance		  19	  5,194,000 	  5,194,000 
	 Revolving credits			   19	  45,608,625 	  45,608,625 
							     

				     428,517,122 	  428,517,122 
	
	
	 Company
	 Other payables			   18	  202,070 	  202,070 
			 
			 

*	 Exclude goods and services tax payable				  
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31.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 

(a)	 Categories of Financial Instruments (Cont’d)	

(ii)	 Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position (Cont’d)

			   2016
						       Other 
						       financial 
						       liabilities  
						       measured 
					     Carrying	  at amortised 
					     amount	  cost 
				     Note 	  RM 	  RM 
	 Group
	 Trade payables			   18	  334,011,143 	  334,011,143 
	 Other payables *			   18	  30,364,425 	  30,364,425 
		 Hire-purchase payable		  15	  294,485 	  294,485 
	 Revolving credits			   19	  32,916,000 	  32,916,000 
							     

				     397,586,053 	  397,586,053 
						    
	

	 Company
	 Other payables			   18	  195,000 	  195,000 
		

*	 Exclude goods and services tax payable

(b)	 Financial Risk Management

	 The Group’s financial instruments are subject to a variety of financial risks including currency risk, 
interest rate risk, credit risk, market risk, liquidity and cash flow risks.

	 The Group’s financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that adequate financial resources are 
available for the development of the Group’s business whilst managing its input material price, liquidity, 
interest rate, foreign exchange and credit risks.  The Group operates within clearly defined guidelines 
that are approved by the Board and the Group’s policy is not to engage in speculative transactions.	

	 The Board is primarily responsible for the management of these risks and to formulate policies and procedures 
for the management thereof.  The risks are managed by regular risk reviews, internal control systems, on-going 
formulation and adherence to financial risk policies and mitigated by insurance coverage where appropriate. 

(i)	 Credit Risk

	 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss attributable to default on obligations by parties contracting 
with the Group. The Group’s main exposure to credit risk is in respect of its trade and other 
receivables and bank balances. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from 
amount due from subsidiaries, bank balances and corporate guarantees given to banks for credit 
facilities of subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 30.				  
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

31.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b)	 Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)

(i)	 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

	 The Group has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is managed through the 
application of credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures. In addition, credit risk 
is minimised and monitored by limiting the Group’s association to business partners with low 
creditworthiness. 

	 As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has significant concentration of credit risk arising 
from the exposure as disclosed below :-

(a)	 Amount due from three (3) (2016 : two (2)) major customers amounting to RM11,888,203 
(2016 : RM11,011,971) representing 94% (2016 : 83%) of total trade receivables.

(b)	 Deposits and advances of RM22,943,441 (2016 : RM16,479,948) paid to five (5) (2016 : 
four (4)) suppliers and contractors representing 99% (2016 : 98%) of total deposits and 
advances paid to shipbuilding suppliers and contractors.

	 The amounts due from the above receivables are monitored by the management on an ongoing 
basis.

	 Information on the ageing of the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in Note 9(b).

	 Cash and cash equivalents are only placed with licensed banks.

	 The Company provides unsecured corporate guarantees to banks for facilities granted to 
subsidiaries.  The Company monitors on an on-going basis the results of the subsidiaries and 
their ability to fulfill the financial obligations.  The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk 
arising from the corporate guarantees provided is represented by the outstanding banking facilities 
utilised by the subsidiaries as at 31 May 2017 amounting RM53,083,784 (2016 : RM32,966,000).  
The fair value of the financial liability in respect of the corporate guarantees provided has not 
been recognised in the Company’s financial statements as the fair value on initial recognition was 
not material.  As at the end of the reporting period, there was no indication that any subsidiaries 
would default on repayment.

(ii)	 Liquidity and Cash Flow Risks

	 Liquidity or funding risk is the risk of the inability to meet commitments associated with financial 
instruments while cash flow risk is the risk of uncertainty of future cash flow amount associated 
with a monetary financial instrument.

	 The Group actively manages its operating cash flows and the availability of funding so as to 
ensure that all repayment and funding needs are met. In view of prudent liquidity management, 
the Group maintains sufficient level of cash to meet its working capital and capital expenditure 
requirements.
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

31.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)   

(b)	 Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)

(ii)	 Liquidity and Cash Flow Risks (Cont’d)

	 Maturity Analysis

	 The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities as at the end of the 
reporting period based on undiscounted contractual payments are as follows :-

2017				    Maturity profile
				    More than			 

			   1 year and	  	 Effective 
			   Less than	 less than		   interest 
			   1 year	 5 years	 Total	  rate 
			   RM	 RM	 RM	  % 
Group
Trade payables		   362,738,605 	  –   	  362,738,605 	  –
Other payables *		   12,582,551 	   –  	  12,582,551 	  – 
Hire-purchase payable	  142,896 	  23,808 	  166,704	  4.55
Bank overdraft		   2,403,181 	  –   	  2,403,181 	  7.71 
Banker’s acceptance	  5,270,569 	  –   	  5,270,569 	 4.56
Revolving credits		   46,034,019 	  –   	  46,034,019 	 3.23 - 4.19
			 

Company
Other payables		   202,070 	  –  	  202,070 	  – 

	

*	 Exclude goods and services tax payable

2016	 			   Maturity profile
				    More than			 

			   1 year and	  	 Effective 
			   Less than	 less than		   interest 
			   1 year	 5 years	 Total	  rate 
			   RM	 RM	 RM	  %
Group
Trade payables		   334,011,143 	 –   	  334,011,143 	 – 
Other payables *		   30,364,425 	 –   	  30,364,425 	  –
Hire-purchase payable	  142,896 	  166,704 	  309,600 	  4.55 
Revolving credits		   33,194,864 	 –   	  33,194,864 	  2.70 - 3.66 
			 

Company
Other payables		   195,000 	 –   	  195,000 	 –

					   

*	 Exclude goods and services tax payable
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

31.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 

(b)	 Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)

(iii)	 Market Risk

	 Market risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market 
prices.

	 The Group’s market risk exposure to currency and interest rate fluctuations are discussed under 
the respective risk headings.

(iv)	 Currency Risk

	 The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of its normal trade activities when the 
currency denomination differs from its functional currency. The currencies giving rise to this risk 
are primarily United States Dollar (“USD”), Singapore Dollar (“SGD”), Japanese Yen (“YEN”) and 
European Union Euro (“Euro”). Foreign exchange exposures in transactional currencies other than 
functional currencies of the Group are kept to an acceptable level. The movements in the rates 
of foreign currencies are monitored by the management and where considered necessary, the 
Group will enter into forward foreign currency exchange contracts to limit its exposure on foreign 
currency receipts and payments. 

	 The Group does not speculate in foreign currency derivatives.

Exposure to currency risk

	 The foreign currency exposure profiles of financial assets and liabilities of the Group and of the 
Company are as follows :-

		  Denominated in foreign currency
		  USD	 SGD	 YEN	 Others	  Total 
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
Group

Functional currency : RM

2017	
Trade and other
  receivables	  1,067,092 	 10,592,889 	  594,150 	  –  	 12,254,131 
Cash and bank
  balances	  1,298,074 	  1,247,897 	  –  	  14,106 	  2,560,077 
Trade and other
  payables	  (378,077)	  (665,711)	  –   	  (80,493)	  (1,124,281)
		
		   1,987,089 	 11,175,075 	  594,150 	  (66,387)	 13,689,927
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

31.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 

(b)	 Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)

(iv)	 Currency Risk (Cont’d)

	 Exposure to currency risk (Cont’d)					   
		
		  Denominated in foreign currency
		  USD	 SGD	 Euro	 Others	  Total 
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
2016	
Trade and other
  receivables	  1,912,655 	 10,692,302 	  36,586 	  76,452 	 12,717,995 
Cash and bank
  balances	  1,314,033 	  385,672 	  2,700 	  19,717 	  1,722,122
Trade and other
  payables	  (600,561)	  (96,184)	 –   	 –   	  (696,745)

		   2,626,127 	 10,981,790 	  39,286 	  96,169 	 13,743,372 
		

	 The Company is not exposed to currency risk as all of its financial assets and liabilities are 
denominated in its functional currency.

	 Currency risk sensitivity analysis

	 A 10 percent strengthening of the major foreign currencies against the functional currency, RM, 
at the end of the reporting period would have increased/(decreased) profit or loss by the amounts 
shown below.  This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain 
constant.

			   Group 
					     2017	 2016
					      RM 	  RM 
			 
USD					      198,709 	  262,613 
SGD					      1,117,508 	  1,098,179 
YEN					     59,415 	  –  
Euro					      –   	  3,929 
Others				     (6,639)	  9,617 

						    
				     1,368,993 	  1,374,338 
			 

	 A 10 percent weakening of the foreign currency against the RM currency at the end of the 
reporting period would have an equal but opposite effect on the profit or loss, assuming that all 
other variables remain constant.					   
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

31.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 

(b)	 Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)

(v)	 Interest Rate Risk	

	 The Group has interest rate risk in respect of its hire-purchase financing, bank borrowings and 
investments in unit trust funds which investments are primarily in money market instruments.

	 The Group’s hire-purchase financing and banker’s acceptance facility are based on a fixed rate 
and its bank overdraft, revolving credit facilities and investments in unit trust funds are based on 
floating rates.

	 Market interest rate movements are monitored with a view to ensuring that the most competitive 
rates are secured and where appropriate borrowing arrangements and interest bearing instruments 
are restructured or reduced.

	 Exposure to interest rate risk

	 The interest rate exposure profile of the Group’s and Company’s significant interest-bearing 
financial instruments, based on the carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period is as 
follows :-

		  Group	 Company
			   2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
Floating rate
  instruments
Financial assets
Other investments		   26,388,062 	  26,013,416 	  26,388,062 	  26,013,416 
Amount due from
  subsidiaries		  –   	 –   	  9,950,000 	  9,050,000 
Financial liabilities
Bank overdraft		   (2,231,159)	 –  	 – 	 –  
Revolving credits		   (45,608,625)	  (32,916,000)	 –   	 – 
	
			    (21,451,722)	  (6,902,584)	  36,338,062 	  35,063,416 
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

31.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b)	 Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)

(v)	 Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

	 Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis	

	 A change of 100 basis points (“bp”) in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would 
have increased/(decreased) equity or post-tax profit or loss by the amounts shown below.  The 
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.	
		

	 2017	
		  Equity	 Profit or loss

			   100bp	 100bp	 100bp	 100bp
			   increase	 decrease	 increase	 decrease
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
Floating rate instruments
Group
Financial assets
Other investments		   263,881 	  (263,881)	  –  	  –   
Financial liabilities
Bank overdraft		   –  	  –   	  (22,312)	  22,312 
Revolving credits		   –   	  –   	  (456,086)	  456,086 
	
				  
Company
Financial assets
Other investments		   263,881 	  (263,881)	  –  	  –  
Amount due from	
  subsidiaries		    –   	  –   	  99,500 	  (99,500)
						    

	
2016	

		  Equity	 Profit or loss
			   100bp	 100bp	 100bp	 100bp
			   increase	 decrease	 increase	 decrease
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
Floating rate instruments
Group
Financial assets
Other investments		   260,134 	  (260,134)	  –   	  –   
Financial liabilities
Revolving credits		   –   	  –   	  (329,160)	  329,160 
							     

					   
Company
Financial assets
Other investments		   260,134 	  (260,134)	  –   	  –   
Amount due from
 subsidiaries		   –   	  –   	  90,500 	  (90,500)
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

31.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 

(c)	 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

(i)	 The fair value of the investment in unit trust funds is determined by reference to market price at 
the end of the reporting period.

(ii)	 The fair value of other current financial assets and liabilities of the Group and of the Company at 
the reporting date approximate to their carrying amounts in the statement of financial position 
due to the relatively short term nature of these financial instruments.

	 The table below analyses financial instruments at the end of the reporting period which are measured 
at fair value by the various levels within a fair value hierarchy :-	

2017	
		  Fair value measurement using

			   Level 1 	 Level 2 	 Level 3 	 Total
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
Group and Company
Financial assets
Available-for-sale investments	  26,388,062 	 –   	 –   	  26,388,062 

	
	 2016

		  Fair value measurement using
			   Level 1 	 Level 2 	 Level 3 	 Total
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
	 Group and Company
	 Financial assets
	 Available-for-sale investments	  26,013,416 	 –   	 –   	  26,013,416 

	

	
32.	 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

	 Property, plant and equipment were acquired by the following means :-
	
			   Group

					      2017 	  2016 
					      RM 	  RM 
						    

	 Aggregate cost of property, plant and equipment			   46,549 	  828,222 
	 Amount financed under hire purchase financing			   –   	  (400,000)
					   
	 Cash purchase				     46,549 	  428,222 

	 The principal amount of instalment payments for property, plant and equipment acquired by hire-purchase 
and leasing financing are reflected as cash outflows from financing activities.		
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

33.	 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT   

	 The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to maintain a strong capital base, to safeguard the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern and to sustain future development of the business. The Group manages 
its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payout to shareholders, return capital to 
shareholders or issue new shares.

	 In the management of capital risk, the management takes into consideration the debt-to-equity ratio as well 
as the Group’s working capital requirements.

	 The debt-to-equity ratio as at 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2016 were as follows :-

	 Debt-to-Equity ratio			 
			   Group
					     2017	 2016
					     RM	 RM
					   
	 Trade and other payables				     375,345,657 	  364,405,995 
	 Hire-purchase and bank borrowings			    53,195,966 	  33,210,485 
	 Less : Cash and bank balances				    (3,722,022)	  (26,398,246)
			 
	 Net debts				     424,819,601 	  371,218,234 
						    
	 Total equity				     160,715,951 	  173,173,181 
	
	 Debt-to-equity ratio				     2.643 	  2.144 

	
	 There were no changes in the Group’s strategy and approach to capital management from the previous 

financial year.
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

34.	 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO BURSA MALAYSIA SECURITIES 
BERHAD’S LISTING REQUIREMENTS

	 Realised and Unrealised Profits/(Losses)

	 The breakdown of retained profits of the Group and the Company as at 31 May 2017, into realised and 
unrealised profits/(losses), pursuant to the directive issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad dated 25 
March 2010, is as follows :-	

					   
	 Group	 Company

		  2017	 2016	 2017	 2016
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
	 Total retained profits of TAS					   
	   Offshore Berhad and its				  
	   subsidiaries :				  
	 - Realised		   77,693,623 	  90,452,175 	  6,602,722 	  5,790,497 
	 - Unrealised		   580,482 	  1,709,612 	  24,135 	  20,279 
						    
			    78,274,105 	  92,161,787 	  6,626,857 	  5,810,776 
	 Consolidation adjustments		  (43,680,318)	  (43,533,283)	  -   	  -   
						    
	 Retained profits as per				  
	   financial statements		   34,593,787 	  48,628,504 	  6,626,857 	  5,810,776 

	 The determination of realised and unrealised profits/(losses) is based on the Guidance of Special Matter No.1, 
Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.		
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We, DATUK LAU NAI HOH and LAU CHOO CHIN, being two of the Directors of TAS OFFSHORE BERHAD do hereby 
state on behalf of the Directors that in our opinion, the financial statements set out on pages 35 to 106 are drawn 
up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and 
the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Group and of the Company as at 31 May 2017 and of the results of operations and cash flows of the Group 
and of the Company for the financial year ended on that date.
	
The supplementary information set out in Note 34 on page 107 have been prepared in accordance with Guidance 
on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosures 
Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
	
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.		
	

……………………………………………..		  ……………………………………………..	
			 
DATUK LAU NAI HOH			   LAU CHOO CHIN			 
Director			   Director		
	
	
Sibu, Sarawak						    
	
Date : 25 August 2017				  

STATEMENT BY
DIRECTORS

STATUTORY 
DECLARATION

I, HII CHAI HUNG, being the Officer primarily responsible for the accounting records and financial management 
of TAS OFFSHORE BERHAD do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial statements set 
out on pages 35 to 106 are to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration 
conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declaration Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the	  )
abovenamed at Sibu in the state of 		  )
Sarawak this 25 August 2017		  )		
			 
			   ……………………………………………..
			   HII CHAI HUNG		
					   
			   Before me,
					   
	

					   
			   ……………………………………………..
			   COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS		
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ 
REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements				  
	
	
Opinion
	
We have audited the financial statements of TAS OFFSHORE BERHAD, which comprise the statements of 
financial position as at 31 May 2017 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of 
the Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies, as set out on pages 35 to 106.
	
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group 
and of the Company as at 31 May 2017, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards 
and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.				  
						    
	
Basis for Opinion
	
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards 
on Auditing.  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.				  
						    
	
Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities
	
We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, 
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.			 
						    
	
Key Audit Matters
	
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.			 
					   

Key audit matters 	How our audit addressed the key audit matters

1.	 Accruals for costs in relation to shipbuilding 
contract works

	
	 As disclosed in Note 18(a) to the financial 

statements, the Group has engaged shipbuilders 
in China for the construction of its offshore support 
vessels. The Group recognises progress billings 
made by the shipbuilders for the construction of 
the offshore support vessels. In addition, costs 
are further accrued based on the progressive work 
performed by the shipbuilders as at reporting date 
pending billings to be rendered by the shipbuilders. 
Cumulative costs accrued as at 31 May 2017 
amounted to RM312,988,654.

Our procedures include the following :

•	 We performed site visits to confirm the existence 
of the vessels constructed by the shipbuilders. 
We identified the relevant vessels on-site 
and matched those vessels to the respective 
shipbuillding contracts entered into with the 
shipbuilders.	
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Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)						    
					   

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters

1.	 Accruals for costs in relation to shipbuilding 
contract works (Cont’d)

	 Accruals for costs are computed based on the 
contract prices of the vessels multiplied by their 
respective percentages of work completed as 
recorded in the construction progress reports issued 
by the shipbuilders and which have been verified 
by the Group’s management.	

	
	 As disclosed in Note 3(b)(ii) to the financial 

statements, significant judgement is required in 
assessing the reliability of the percentages of 
work completed which were estimated by the 
shipbuilders. In view of its significance and the 
subjectivity involved to determine the percentages 
of work completed and the accuracy of the amount 
accrued, we considered this area as a key audit 
matter for the Group.

Our procedures include the following (Cont’d) : 

•	 We conducted inquiries of the shipbuilders’ 
officials on-site to establish the progress of the 
construction of the vessels and assessed the 
condition and the reasonableness of the stage of 
completion of such vessels against the stage of 
completion as recorded in the progress reports 
prepared by the shipbuilders. 		
	

•	 We recomputed the percentages of work 
completed as recorded in the progress reports  to 
assess their arithmetical accuracy and reviewed 
the workings prepared by the management 
to assess whether the application of the 
percentages of work completed to compute 
accruals were consistent with those reports. We 
also reviewed the workings to check the accuracy 
of contract prices extracted from the shipbuilding 
contracts and performed recomputation of 
the costs accrued to confirm their arithmetical 
accuracy. 

	

2.	 Net realisable values of unsold vessels
	
		 The fall in oil price and the reduction in capital 

expenditure by oil majors have caused a glut in the 
world market for offshore support vessels and this 
has resulted in a drop in demand for such vessels.

	 The significant decline in sales of offshore support 
vessels has led the management to engage an 
independent external valuer to assess the net 
realisable values of the Group’s unsold vessels, 
both completed and under construction, which 
were included in inventories as at 31 May 2017 
as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. 
These offshore support vessels were constructed 
by the shipbuilders in China as stated in item (1) 
above.

Our procedures include the following :

•	 	We performed site visits to confirm the 
existence of the unsold vessels (held at the 
shipyards of the contracted shipbuilders) and to 
assess the condition of such vessels.	
	

•	 We conducted a physical inspection of the 
vessels on-site and compared the condition of 
the vessels to the stage of completion recorded 
in the various verified progress reports prepared 
by the shipbuilders.	
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Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)						    
					   

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters

2.	 Net realisable values of unsold vessels 
	 (Cont’d)

		 The net realisable values of the unsold offshore 
support vessels were assessed on the basis of their 
respective completed state and after taking into 
consideration of the prevailing market conditions 
for the supply and demand for such vessels. The 
management has assessed the external valuation 
and has computed and recognised a write down 
in value inventories of RM7,389,360 for the current 
financial year as disclosed in Notes 7 and 23 to 
the financial statements.		
	

	 As disclosed in Note 3(b)(iii) to the financial 
statements, significant judgement is required to 
estimate the appropriate net realisable values of 
the Group’s inventories. In view of the significance 
of the amount of unsold vessels and the high 
level of subjectivity involved to estimate the net 
realisable values, we considered this area as a key 
audit matter for the Group.

Our procedures include the following (Cont’d) :

•	 	We considered the qualifications, objectivity and 
competency of the independent valuer engaged 
in the valuation of the unsold vessels and 
assessed the reasonableness of the assumptions 
used in arriving at the valuation.		
	

•	 We reviewed the management’s computation of 
the amount of costs written down based on the 
external valuations performed.		
	

	

3.	 Contract revenue recognition using the 
percentage of completion method and 
recoverability of amount due from contract 
customers

	
	 As disclosed in Notes 2.12.1 and 20 to the 

financial statements, the Group recognised 
RM18,114,752 of revenue from shipbuilding 
construction contracts using the percentage 
of completion (“POC”) method. The POC was 
determined by reference to the proportion of 
contract costs incurred for work performed as at 
year-end in relation to the estimated total contract 
costs.

	 In addition, with the downturn in the oil and gas 
industry, certain customers have requested for 
deferral of delivery dates of vessels. This would 
impact the appropriateness of revenue and profit 
recognised as well as the recoverability of amount 
due from customers in relation to the Group’s 
vessel construction contracts. The amount due 
from contract customers as at 31 May 2017 
where delivery dates have been deferred was 
RM13,732,443.

Our procedures include the following :

•	 We performed site visits to confirm the existence 
of the vessels constructed by the Group and 
where relevant, matched these vessels to the 
respective sales agreements entered with 
customers.

•	 We compared the POC as determined by the 
management against the vessels’ condition to 
assess the appropriateness of the management’s 
estimates.

•	 We assessed the reasonableness of key inputs in 
the cost estimation and verified significant cost 
elements against their supporting documentation 
including contracts and workings for estimates 
of contract costs.	
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Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)	

Key audit matters 	How our audit addressed the key audit matters

3.	 Contract revenue recognition using the 
percentage of completion method and 
recoverability of amount due from contract 
customers (Cont’d)

	
		 As disclosed in Note 3(b)(i) to the financial 

statements, significant judgement is required 
in:	

•	 determining the appropriate POC as it 
involved the estimation of total contract 
costs and the extent of actual costs incurred; 
and

•	 determining and assessing whether the 
Group’s customers would be able to fulfill 
their contractual obligations and take 
delivery of the vessels.

	 In this regard, we considered these areas as key 
audit matters for the Group.

Our procedures include the following (Cont’d) : 

•	 	We verified the actual costs incurred against the 
relevant supporting documentation.

•	 We performed recomputation of the POC to 
assess the arithmetical accuracy of revenue and 
costs recognised for the current financial year 
and traced the revenue and costs recognised to 
the accounting records.

•	 We reviewed the management’s assessment 
of the risk of customers defaulting on their 
contractual obligations.

•	 Where there were deferral of delivery dates, we 
discussed with the management to understand 
their assessment of the impact of the delay and 
the appropriateness of the judgement used on 
the recognition of revenue and associated profit.

				  
					   
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 
	
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises information 
contained in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
and our auditors’ report thereon.
	
Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
	
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.	
	
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.		
	
	
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements
	
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also 
responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.						    
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
	
In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing 
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the 
Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.		

	
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
	
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards 
on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
	
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on 
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.  We also :
	
•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the 

Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.	
			 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Group’s and the Company’s internal control.				  
	

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the Directors.					   
	

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditors’ report.  However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company 
to cease to continue as a going concern.			 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.		
		

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit 
opinion.					   
	

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
	
We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.	 			 
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)		
	
From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.			 
	
	
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements	
	
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of 
which we have not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.			 
						    
	
Other Reporting Responsibilities					   
	
The supplementary information set out in Note 34 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The Directors are responsible for the preparation of 
the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised 
and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing 
Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in 
accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.		
	
	
Other Matters					   
	
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the 
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose.  We do not assume responsibility to any other person 
for the content of this report.					   

	

						    
FOLKS DFK & CO.			   NG ENG KIAT	 	
FIRM NO. : AF 0502			   NO. : 01064/03/2019 J		
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS				   CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT	

					   
	
Kuala Lumpur					   
	

	
Date : 25 August 2017						    
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Location/
Address

Description/
Existing
Use

Land Area
(Acres)

Approx. 
Age of 
Building
(Years)

Date of
Revaluation Tenure

Net Book
Value as at 
31.5.2017
(RM)

Lot 199 Block 1
Sibu Town 
District

S h i p y a r d  w i t h 
3-storey office, two 
3-storey workers’ 
quarters, two utility 
hangers cum 
workshop, store, 
1-storey guard 
house and a 
slipway. 

12.23 14 19.11.2008 Lease-
hold 60 years 
expir ing in 
2070

17,033,676

Landed Property of the Group 
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Analysis of Shareholdings

Analysis of Shareholdings as at 11 August 2017

SHARE CAPITAL 

Issued Shares	 :	 180,002,000 ordinary shares 
		
Class of shares	 :	 Ordinary Shares 
		
Voting rights	 :	 One (1) vote per ordinary share

DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE OF ORDINARY SHARES

			   No. of 	 Total 	 Percentage of
Holdings			   Holders	 Holdings	 issued capital

Less than 100 shares			   5	 115	 0.00 *
100 – 1,000 shares			   323	 267,991	 0.15
1,001 – 10,000 shares			   1,835	 10,775,500	 6.14
10,001 – 100,000 shares			   1,195	 38,788,800	 22.09
100,001 – less than 5% of issue shares		  126	 35,238,523	 20.07
5% and above of issued shares			   4	 90,525,671	 51.55

Total 			   3,488	 175,596,600 #	 100.00

* 	 Less than 0.01 %

#  	 Excluding 4,405,400 ordinary shares bought back by the Company and retained as treasury shares based 
on Record of Depositors as at 11 August 2017.

THIRTY LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNTS HOLDERS

No. 	 Account Holders	 Shareholdings 	 Percentage 
			 
1.	 Lau Nai Hoh	 30,000,000	 17.08

2.	 Lau Nai Hoh	 30,000,000	 17.08

3.	 Lau Nai Hoh	 20,000,000	 11.39

4.	 Lau Nai Hoh	 10,525,671	 5.99

5.	 Tan Aik Choon	 1,554,400	 0.89

6.	 Hii Sieng Teck	 1,365,800	 0.78

7.	 Lau Chui Tai	 1,324,700	 0.75

8.	 Hii Kiong Thai	 1,241,317	 0.71

9.	 Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
	 Pledged Securities Account for Lau Kiing Ho (E-SDK)	 995,900	 0.57

10.	 Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
	 Pledged Securities Account for Christine Ang Chiew Mui (7001270)	 953,000	 0.54
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THIRTY LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNTS HOLDERS

No. 	 Account Holders	 Shareholdings 	 Percentage 
			 
11.	 Ng Teng Song	 827,600	 0.47

12.	 Oui Kee Seng	 754,500	 0.43

13.	 Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
	 Pledged Securities Account for Tan Soon Hiang (001)	 630,700	 0.36

14.	 Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
	 Pledged Securities Account for Chong Wei Lik (E-MLB/PSG) 	 600,000	 0.34

15.	 Goh Yoke Choo	 545,900	 0.31

16.	 Lee Kok Loong 	 516,400	 0.29

17.	 Ng Teng Song	 511,000	 0.29

18.	 Loh Chwee Chew Mooring Services Private Limited	 500,000	 0.28

19.	 Lau Choon Yee	 470,000	 0.27

20.	 Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
	 Pledged Securities Account for Chuah Swee Huat (E-KLC)	 466,600	 0.27

21.	 Tan Chia Chin	 450,000	 0.26

22.	 Goh Ah Soi @ Goh Geok Swee	 440,000	 0.25

23.	 Lau Choo Chin	 409,006	 0.23

24.	 Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
	 Pledged Securities Account for Ng Faai @ Ng Yoke Pei (SRB/PMS)	 407,000	 0.23

25.	 Maybank Securities Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
	 Pledged Securities Account for Vincent Phua Chee Ee	 400,000	 0.23

26.	 W Ismail Bin W Nik	 400,000	 0.23

27.	 Jasmin Villa Development Sdn Bhd	 395,200	 0.23

28.	 Tok Ler	 360,200	 0.21

29.	 Maybank Securities Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
	 Pledged Securities Account for Ong Siok Wan	 360,000	 0.21

30.	 Saw You Boon	 335,000	 0.19
			 
	 Total 	 107,739,894	 61.36

Analysis of Shareholdings (cont’d)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

The substantial shareholders’ interests in shares in the Company as per the Register of substantial shareholders 
as at 11 August 2017 are as follows:-
       
	     No. of Ordinary Shares 
			   Direct	 %	 Indirect	 %

1.	  Datuk Lau Nai Hoh		  90,525,671	 51.55	 1,281,317(i) 	 0.73

Note 

(i)	 Deemed interested by virtue of the shareholdings of his spouse, Datin Hii Kiong Thai (1,241,317 shares) and 
his children, Mr Lau Choo Kuang (20,000 shares) and Ms Lau Siew Ling (20,000 shares) in the Company.

 

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST

The directors’ interests in shares in the Company and related corporations as per the Register of Directors’ 
shareholdings as at 11 August 2017 are as follows:-

 	  No. of Ordinary Shares 
			   Direct	 %	 Indirect	 %

1.	 Datuk Lau Nai Hoh		  90,525,671	 51.55	 1,281,317 (i)	 0.73
2.	 Lau Choo Chin		  409,006	 0.23	 40,000 (ii)	 0.02
3.	 Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Mohd Jamil 
	   Bin Johari		  10,000	 0.01	 –	 –
4.	 Ling Ka Chuan		  10,000	 0.01	 –	 –
5.	 Lau Kiing Yiing		  10,000	 0.01	 –	 –
6.	 Datu Haji Mohammed Sepuan 
	   bin Anu		  15,000	 0.01	 –	 –

Notes:

(i) 	 Deemed interested under Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016 by virtue of his spouse’s and children’s 
shareholdings in the Company. 

(ii) 	 Deemed interested under Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016 by virtue of his spouse’s shareholdings in 
the Company.

Analysis of Shareholdings (cont’d)
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NOTICE OF 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Tenth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Tanahmas 
Hotel, Jalan Kampung Nyabor, 96007 Sibu, Sarawak on Friday 6 October 2017 at 9.30 a.m. to transact the following 
business:-

A G E N D A

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1	 To lay before the meeting the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for 
the financial year ended 31 May 2017 together with the Reports of the Directors 
and Auditors thereon.

	
2	 To approve the payment of Directors’ fees in respect of the financial year ending 

31 May 2018.
	
3	 To approve the payment of Meeting Attendance Allowances and any other benefits 

payable to the Directors with effect from February 2017 until otherwise resolved.
	
4	 To re-elect the following Directors retiring pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s 

Articles of Association, and being eligible offer themselves for re-election :-

(i)    Lau Kiing Yiing
	
	 (ii)    Ling Ka Chuan
	

5	 To re-appoint Datu Haji Mohammed Sepuan Bin Anu to continue as a director 
of the Company

6	 To re-appoint Messrs. FOLKS DFK & Co. as Auditors for the ensuing year and 
to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.	

		
SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following Resolutions:

7	 Authority to Issue and Allot shares 

	 “THAT pursuant to Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2016 and subject always to 
the Company’s Articles of Association and approvals of the relevant authorities, 
the Directors be hereby empowered to issue shares in the Company from time to 
time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors 
may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit provided that the aggregate number 
of shares issued pursuant to this resolution does not exceed ten per cent (10%) 
of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being AND THAT the 
Directors be hereby empowered to obtain approval for the listing and quotation 
of the additional shares so issued on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad AND 
THAT such authority shall continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next 
annual general meeting of the Company.”	

Please refer to 
explanatory
note (A)

Ordinary Resolution 1

Ordinary Resolution 2

Ordinary Resolution 3

Ordinary Resolution 4

Ordinary Resolution 5

Ordinary Resolution 6

Ordinary Resolution 7
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8	 Proposed Renewal of Authority for the Company to Purchase its Own Shares
	 (“Proposed Share Buy-Back”)

	 “THAT subject always to the Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”), the Company’s 
Articles of Association, the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia”) and any other relevant governmental 
and/or regulatory authorities, the Directors of the Company be and are hereby 
authorised to purchase such amount of ordinary shares in the Company as may 
be determined by the Directors of the Company from time to time through Bursa 
Malaysia as the Directors may deemed fit and expedient in the interest of the 
Company provided that :

a)	 the aggregate number of shares to be purchased shall not exceed ten per 
cent (10%) of the issued and paid-up ordinary share capital of the Company;

b)	 the maximum funds to be allocated by the Company for the purpose of 
the Proposed Share Buy-Back shall not exceed the total retained profits 
of the Company for the time being;

c)	 the Directors of the Company may decide in their discretion to retain the 
shares purchased as treasury shares and/or to cancel them and/or to resell 
them and/or to distribute them as share dividends; and

	 AND THAT such authority shall commence upon the passing of this resolution 
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company unless 
earlier revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the 
Company in general meeting;

	 AND THAT the Directors be and are hereby authorised to act and to take all 
steps and do all things as they may deem necessary or expedient in order to 
implement, finalise and give full effect to the Proposed Share Buy-Back with full 
power to assent to any conditions, modifications, variations and amendments 
as may be imposed by the relevant authorities.”

	
9	 To transact any other business of which due notice shall have been given in 

accordance with the Companies Act, 2016 and the Articles of Association 
of the Company.	

		
	 By order of the Board	
	

	
	 Pauline Kon Suk Khim (MAICSA 7014905)	
	 Company Secretary	
	
	
	 Date : 13 September 2017	
		

Ordinary Resolution 8

NOTICE OF 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
(cont’d)
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Notes :-

1.	 For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend this Annual General Meeting, 
the Company shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd in accordance with Article 60 of the 
Company’s Article of Association and Section 34(1) of the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991 
to issue a General Meeting Record of Depositors as at 29 September 2017.  Only a depositor whose name 
appears on the General Meeting Record of Depositors as at 29 September 2017 shall be entitled to attend 
the said meeting or appoint proxies to attend and/or vote on his/her behalf.

2.	 A member shall be entitled to appoint more than one (1) proxy to attend and vote at the same meeting.  A 
proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and a member may appoint any persons to be his/her 
proxy. 

3.	 To be valid, the proxy form, duly completed must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at Lot 
199, Jalan Sg. Maaw, Sungai Bidut, P. O. Box 920, 96008 Sibu, Sarawak not less than 48 hours before the 
time set for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

4.	 Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company 
for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number 
of proxies which the exempt authorized nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

5.	 Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the 
proportions of his holdings to be represented by each proxy.

6.	 If the appointer is a corporation, this form must be executed under its common seal or under the hand of an 
officer or attorney duly authorised.

EXPLANATORY NOTES :

(A)	 Audited Financial Statements

	 The Audited Financial Statements are laid before the shareholders for discussion only as they do not require 
shareholders’ approval pursuant to Section 340(1) of the Companies Act, 2016.  Hence, this matter will not 
be put for voting.

(B)	 Ordinary Resolution 2 - Payment of Meeting Allowance and any other benefits to Directors

	 Section 230(1) of the Companies Act, 2016 requires the benefits payable to Directors of the Company to 
be approved at a general meeting.  Shareholders’ approval for the payment of annual meeting attendance 
allowance and any other benefits of up to RM38,000 is sought and shall take effect from February 2017 
onwards until such time a revision is proposed.

(C) 	 Ordinary Resolution 5 – Re-appointment of Director 

	 With the coming into force of the Companies Act 2016 on 31 January 2017, there is no age limit for directors.

	 At the 9th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of TAS Offshore Berhad held on 28 September 2016, Datu Haji 
Mohammed Sepuan Bin Anu who was at the age of 70, was re-appointed pursuant to Section 129 of the 
Companies Act 1965 (which was then in force) to hold office until the conclusion of 10th AGM. Datu has 
offered himself for re-appointment. 

	 The proposed Ordinary Resolution 5, if passed, will enable Datu Haji Mohammed Sepuan Bin Anu to continue 
to act as Director of the Company and he shall thereafter be subject to retirement by rotation in accordance 
to the Articles of Association of the Company.

NOTICE OF 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

(cont’d)
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(D)	 Ordinary Resolution 7 – Authority to Issue and Allot shares

	 This Ordinary Resolution, if passed, is a renewal of the general mandate to empower the Directors of the 
Company from the date of this Annual General Meeting, authority to issue and allot Ordinary Shares from the 
unissued capital of the Company up to an aggregate of ten per cent (10%) of the issued and paid-up share 
capital of the Company for the time being, for such purposes as the Directors consider in their absolute 
discretion to be in the interest of the Company.  This authority unless revoked or varied at a general meeting 
will expire at the next annual general meeting.  With this authority, the Company will be able to raise capital 
from the equity market in a shorter period of time and the cost to be incurred will also be lower as the need 
to convene an extraordinary general meeting will be dispensed with.

	 As at the date of this Notice, no new shares in the Company were issued pursuant to the authority granted 
to the Directors at the last Annual General Meeting held on 28 September 2016 and which will lapse at the 
conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

	 The general mandate will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible fund raising activities, including 
but not limited to further placing of shares, for the purpose of funding future investment project(s), working 
capital and/or acquisitions.

(E)	 Ordinary Resolution 8 - Proposed Renewal of Authority for the Company to Purchase its Own Shares

	 The Proposed Ordinary Resolution No. 8 if passed, will authorise the Company to purchase up to ten per cent 
(10%) of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company through Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

NOTICE OF 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
(cont’d)

Statement accompanying 
Notice of Annual General Meeting

There is no person seeking election as Director of the Company at this Annual General Meeting.



TAS OFFSHORE BERHAD
(Company No 810179-T)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

No. of  Shares held

PROXY FORM

I/We, ................................................................................ of  .............................................................................. being a member/
members of the abovenamed Company hereby appoint...................................................................................................................
of .......................................................................................................................................................................................................
................................................................................................................................................... or failing him, .................................  
of .......................................................................................................................................................................................................  
or *the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 10th Annual General Meeting of 
the Company to be held at Tanahmas Hotel, Jalan Kampung Nyabor, 96007 Sibu, Sarawak on Friday 6th day of October 2017 at 
9.30 am and, at any adjournment thereof for/against* the resolutions to be proposed thereat.

Resolution No Ordinary Business FOR AGAINST

Ordinary Resolution 1 To approve the Directors’ fees. 

Ordinary Resolution 2 To approve payment of meeting allowance and other benefits to 
Directors

Ordinary Resolution 3 To re-elect Mr Lau Kiing Yiing as Director.

Ordinary Resolution 4 To re-elect Mr Ling Ka Chuan as Director.

Ordinary Resolution 5 To re-appointment of Datu Haji Mohammed Sepuan Bin Anu as Director

Ordinary Resolution 6 	To re-appoint Messrs. FOLKS DFK & Co.  as Auditors for the ensuing 
year.

Special business

Ordinary Resolution 7 To approve the authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 76 of the 
Company Act, 2016.

Ordinary Resolution 8	 To approve the proposed renewal of authority for the Company to 
purchase its own shares

(Please indicate with an “X’ or “ü” in the spaces provided above on how you wish your vote to be cast.  If you do not do so, the 
proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his discretion)

The proportions of my holdings to be presented by my *proxy/our proxies are as follows:

Numbers of shares Percentage

First named proxy A %

Second named proxy B %

Total 100%

*Strike out whichever is not desired. (unless otherwise instructed the proxy may vote as he thinks fit)

Dated this.................... day of	.............................. 2017

	 ....................................................................
Signature of Member(s) /Common Seal

Notes:
1.	 For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend this Annual General Meeting, the Company shall be 

requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd in accordance with Article 60 of the Company’s Article of Association and Section 

34(1) of the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991 to issue a General Meeting Record of Depositors as at 29 September 

2017.  Only a depositor whose name appears on the General Meeting Record of Depositors as at 29 September 2017 shall be 

entitled to attend the said meeting or appoint proxies to attend and/or vote on his/her behalf.

2.	 A member shall be entitled to appoint more than one (1) proxy to attend and vote at the same meeting.  A proxy may but need not 

be a member of the Company and a member may appoint any persons to be his/her proxy. 

3.	 To be valid, the proxy form, duly completed must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at Lot 199, Jalan Sg. 

Maaw, Sungai Bidut, P. O. Box 920, 96008 Sibu, Sarawak not less than 48 hours before the time set for holding the meeting or any 

adjournment thereof.

4.	 Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple 

beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt 

authorized nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

5.	 Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his 

holdings to be represented by each proxy.

6.	 If the appointer is a corporation, this form must be executed under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly 

authorised.

✄
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